








APPROVED:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SANTA FE SPRINGS PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 

November 13, 2017 
 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Jimenez called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m.  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

Chairperson Jimenez called upon Commissioner Arnold to lead everyone in the Pledge 
of Allegiance.  
 

3. ROLL CALL                
Members present:  Chairperson Jimenez  
   Vice Chairperson Aranda 
   Commissioner Arnold 
    Commissioner Mora     
   
          

 Staff:   Richard L. Adams II, City Attorney  
    Wayne Morrell, Director of Planning 
    Cuong Nguyen, Senior Planner 
    Laurel Reimer, Planning Consultant 
    Jimmy Wong, Planning Consultant 
    Vince Velasco, Planning Consultant 
    Luis Collazo, Code Enforcement Officer 
    Teresa Cavallo, Planning Secretary 
    Noe Negrete, Director of Public Works  
 
     

Members absent:   Commissioner Ybarra 
 
  

4. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
No speakers. 
 
MINUTES 

5. a. Approval of the minutes of the September 11, 2017 Planning Commission meeting  
   
b. Approval of the minutes of the October 9, 2017 Planning Commission meeting  
  



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 2 
 

It was moved by Vice Chairperson Aranda, seconded by Commissioner Arnold to 
approve the minutes of the September 11, 2017 and October 9, 2017 Planning 
Commission meetings, as submitted which passed by the following vote: 

 
Ayes:  Aranda, Arnold, Mora, and Jimenez  
Nayes: None 
Absent:  Ybarra  

 
 
At the request of the Director of Public Works Noe Negrete, Item 11 was heard first. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

Parkway Tree Removal Appeal Decision  
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission: 
 Reaffirm the decision of the Director of Public Works to deny the request by the  

property owner to have the City remove the parkway tree in front of 11418 Quinn 
Street; and 

 Deny the property owner at 11418 Quinn Street a permit to remove the parkway  
tree at their own expense. 

 
Chairperson Jimenez called upon Director of Public Works Noe Negrete who presented 
Item No. 11 before the Planning Commission.  No one was present on behalf of the 
applicant.  
 
Commissioner Mora inquired about signs of breakage to the resident’s planter.  Director 
of Public Works Noe Negrete replied that there were no signs of any breakage to the 
planter and if there would have been signs of any breakage the City would have referred 
the resident to file a claim with the City Clerk’s office for damages. 
 
Vice Chairperson Aranda inquired about the pipe broken under the home as mentioned 
in the appeal application.  Director of Public Works Noe Negrete replied that further 
evidence was requested; however, none has been provided to date regarding the broken 
pipe. 
 
Commissioner Arnold inquired about a sidewalk and/or parkway in the area and was 
concerned about the width available to install such.  Director of Public Works Noe Negrete 
replied that the City always reserves the right to install a sidewalk at any time; however, 
at this time the City is not advocating to install one.  If the City would decide to install a 
sidewalk, the City would have to evaluate the tree to grind the roots without damaging the 
tree.  Mr. Negrete further stated that per ADA standards the sidewalk width is 3 ft. which 
would fit between the tree and residential fence.   
 
Chairperson Jimenez inquired about the utility pool located on the corner of the public-
right-away and how that would affect a sidewalk.  Director of Public Works Noe Negrete 
replied that there should be at least three feet to install a sidewalk. 
 
Having no further questions or comments, Chairperson Jimenez requested a motion and 



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 3 
 

second on Item No. 11. 
 
It was moved by Vice Chairperson Aranda, seconded by Commissioner Mora to approve 
the Parkway Tree Removal Appeal Decision, and the recommendations regarding this 
matter, which passed by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Aranda, Arnold, Mora, and Jimenez  
Nayes: None 
Absent:  Ybarra 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING  
6. Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 73 

Recommendation: That the Planning Commission: 
 Open the Public Hearing and receive any comments from the public regarding 

Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 73, and thereafter close the Public 
Hearing; 

 Find and determine that the proposed project is a categorically-exempt project 
pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, Existing Facilities) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); consequently, no other environmental 
documents are required by law; 

 Recommend that the City Council review and approve Alcohol Sales Conditional Use 
Permit (ASCUP) Case No. 73 subject to the conditions of approval contained within 
this report.   

 
Chairperson Jimenez called upon Code Enforcement Officer Luis Collazo to present Item 
No. 6 before the Planning Commission.   
 
Chair Jimenez opened the Public Hearing at 6:22 p.m. and requested if anyone wished 
to speak on this matter.  There were no public comments received.   
 
Chairperson Jimenez closed the Public Hearing at 6:23 p.m. and requested a motion and 
second for Item No. 6.    
 
It was moved by Commissioner Arnold, seconded by Vice Chairperson Aranda to approve 
Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 73, and the recommendations regarding 
this matter, which passed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  Aranda, Arnold, Mora, and Jimenez  
Nayes: None 
Absent:  Ybarra 

 
Assistant City Attorney Richard L. Adams, II read the City’s appeal process to inform the 
Planning Commission and public.     
 
PUBLIC HEARING   

7. CEQA Categorical Exemption - Class 21 (Enforcement Actions by Regulatory Agencies) 
Revocation of Conditional Use Permit Case No. 667 
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission: 



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 4 
 

 Find that the unmanned wireless telecommunication facility, for which Conditional 
Use Permit Case No. 667 granted, has ceased to exist. Consequently, the action 
to revoke and nullify Conditional Use Permit Case No. 667 complies with the 
requirements and provisions under section 155.811(D). 

 Revoke and nullify Conditional Use Permit Case No. 667.  
 
Chairperson Jimenez called upon Planning Consultant Vince Velasco to present Item No. 
7 before the Planning Commission.   
 
Vice Chairperson Aranda inquired about property ownership and who is responsible for 
restoring the site to its original condition.  Senior Planner Cuong Nguyen replied that via 
a demolition permit the site would be restored to its original condition. 
 
Chairperson Jimenez opened the Public Hearing at 6:25 p.m. and requested if anyone 
wished to speak on this matter.  There were no public comments received.   
 
Chairperson Jimenez closed the Public Hearing at 6:27 p.m. and requested a motion and 
second for Item No. 7.    
 
It was moved by Commissioner Mora, seconded by Commissioner Arnold to approve 
Revocation of Conditional Use Permit Case No. 667, and the recommendations regarding 
this matter, which passed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  Aranda, Arnold, Mora, and Jimenez  
Nayes: None 
Absent:  Ybarra 

 
Assistant City Attorney Richard L. Adams, II read the City’s appeal process to inform the 
Planning Commission and public.     
 
PUBLIC HEARING  

8. Adoption of Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Development Plan Approval Case No. 925 & Conditional Use Permit Case No. 780 
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
 Open the Public Hearing and receive any comments from the public regarding 

Development Plan Approval Case No. 925 and Conditional Use Permit Case No. 
780 and, thereafter, close the Public Hearing; and 

 Find and determine that the proposed project will not be detrimental to persons or 
properties in the surrounding area or to the City in general, and will be in 
conformance with the overall purpose and objective of the Zoning Regulations and 
consistent with the goals, policies and program of the City’s General Plan; and 

 Find that the applicant’s request meets the criteria set forth in §155.739 of the 
Zoning Regulations, for the granting of Development Plan Approval; and 

 Find that the applicant’s request meets the criteria set forth in §155.716 of the 
Zoning Regulations, for the granting of a Conditional Use Permit; and 

 Approve and adopt the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration which, based on 
the findings of the Initial Study, indicates that there is no substantial evidence that the 
proposed project will have a significant adverse effect on the environment; and 



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 5 
 

 Approve the proposed Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the 
proposed project (DPA 925 & CUP 780); and 

 Approve Development Plan Approval Case No. 925 and Conditional Use Permit 
Case No. 780, subject to the conditions of approval as contained with the Staff 
Report. 

 
Chairperson Jimenez called upon Planning Consultant Laurel Reimer to present Item No. 
8 before the Planning Commission.  Present in the audience on behalf of the applicant 
was Ryan Off and Doug Off, members of the Ojai Oil Company – Golden State Storage 
Management Team  
 
Vice Chairperson Aranda inquired if the City has a condition that prevents someone from 
storing or working on their vehicle within such a use. Planning Consultant Laurel Reimer 
replied that the City updated the Zoning Code that prohibits the storage and maintenance 
of vehicles.   
 
Chairperson Jimenez opened the Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m. and requested if anyone 
wished to speak on this matter.     
 
Ryan Off from Ojai Oil Company - Golden State Storage came forward before the 
Planning Commission indicated that they are hoping to demolish the facility by May or 
June 2018 to begin construction with a completion date of January through June 2019.  
 
Having no further comments or questions, Chairperson Jimenez closed the Public 
Hearing at 6:42 p.m. and requested a motion and second for Item No. 8.    
 
It was moved by Commissioner Mora, seconded by Commissioner Arnold to approve 
Development Plan Approval Case No. 925 & Conditional Use Permit Case No. 780, and 
the recommendations regarding this matter, which passed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  Aranda, Arnold, Mora, and Jimenez  
Nayes: None 
Absent:  Ybarra 

 
Assistant City Attorney Richard L. Adams, II read the City’s appeal process to inform 
the Planning Commission and public.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 

9. Adoption of Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Development Plan Approval Case No. 927 & Conditional Use Permit Case No. 782  
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
 Open the public hearing and receive any comments from the public regarding 

Development Plan Approval Case No. 927 and Conditional Use Permit Case No. 
782, and thereafter, close the public hearing; and 

 Find and determine that the proposed project will not be detrimental to persons or 
properties in the surrounding area or to the City in general;  

 Find and determine that the proposed project, together with the provision for its 
design and improvement is consistent with the Zoning Regulations and the City’s 



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 6 
 

General Plan; and 
 Find that the applicant’s request meets the criteria set forth in §155.739 of the City’s 

Zoning Regulations, for the granting of Development Plan Approval; and 
 Find that the applicant’s request meets the criteria set forth in §155.716 of the 

Zoning Regulations, for the granting of a Conditional Use Permit; and  
 Approve and adopt the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration which, based on the 

findings of the Initial Study indicates potentially significant environmental effects 
related to the project have been reduced or otherwise or mitigated to less than 
significant levels; and 

 Approve the proposed Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the 
proposed project (DPA 927 & CUP 782); and  

 Approve Development Plan Approval Case No. 927 and Conditional Use Permit 
Case No. 782, subject to the conditions of approval as contained within the staff 
report.  

 
*** SEE ITEM NO. 10 *** 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

10. Categorically Exempt – CEQA Guideline Section 15315 - Class 15 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 78229  
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
 Open the Public Hearing and receive any comments from the public regarding 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 78229 and, after receiving all public comments, thereafter 
close the Public Hearing; and   

 Find that Tentative Parcel Map No. 78229, together with the provision for its design and 
improvement, is consistent with the City’s General Plan; and  

 Find that Tentative Parcel Map No. 78229 meets the standards set forth in Sections 
66474 and 66474.6 of the Subdivision Map Act for the granting of approval of a tentative 
or final map; and 

 Approve Tentative Tract Map No. 78229, subject to the conditions of approval as 
stated in the report.  

 
Chairperson Jimenez called upon Planning Consultant Jimmy Wong to present Item Nos. 
9 and 10 before the Planning Commission.  Present in the audience on behalf of the 
applicant was Vice President of Development Brandon Dickens of Simply Self Storage.   
 
Vice Chairperson Aranda inquired about the truck route once construction commences 
via Rosecrans onto the I-5 freeway.  Director of Planning Wayne Morrell replied that per 
Caltrans plans access onto Rosecrans should be available.  
 
Commissioner Arnold inquired about the traffic flow along Rosecrans and Carmenita.  
Commissioner Arnold further inquired if the Environmental Impact Report took into 
consideration the projects that were recently approved along the corner of Rosecrans and 
Carmenita.  Commissioner Arnold commented that the City has a responsibility to 
consider what the City is adding to the traffic onto those streets we have located within 
our City.  
 
Director of Planning Wayne Morrell wanted to clarify that an Environmental Impact Report 



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 7 
 

was not completed for this project, that only an Initial Study and a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration were completed for this project.  Mr. Morrell further stated that in preparation 
of the traffic study, typically what is required the applicant would contact the City’s Traffic 
Engineer Tom Lopez and the Planning Department would provide the applicant with a list 
of all the projects that have been approved within the surrounding area so that is it 
incorporated into the environmental document and traffic study. 
 
Chairperson Jimenez opened the Public Hearing at 6:57 p.m. and requested if anyone 
wished to speak on this matter.  
 
Mr. Josh Patterson of A-American Storage came forward before the Planning 
Commission and requested that a full environmental impact report be conducted since 
traffic is very bad, especially during rush hour, which makes it difficult for his tenants to 
enter and exit his facility.  Mr. Patterson indicated that in the surrounding area there are 
thirteen (13) self-storage facilities and none of those have RV storage.  This project should 
consider RV storage for this project since there is a need. 
 
Mr. Pat Nyland of Santa Fe Self Storage came forward before the Planning Commission 
and reiterated that the flow of traffic in that area is extremely bad especially during rush 
hour and the need for RV Storage.  Mr. Nyland indicated that with the upcoming Stage 
Road Bridge project traffic is going to be further impacted.  
 
The applicant, Brandon Dickens approached the Planning Commission to speak on 
behalf of his project.  Mr. Dickens indicated that he understands the traffic concerns and 
that he and staff did not take this traffic issue lightly.  Mr. Dickens further commented that 
there is a demand for self-storage and this project will have all interior, climate controlled 
units, as well as video cameras, etc. and will be good neighbors.   
 
Ms. Tracy Zinn, Environmental Consultant from T & B Planning, for the project came 
forward before the Planning Commission and replied to Mr. Patterson’s request for a full 
environmental impact report by indicating that even if a full environmental impact report 
was required the same traffic analysis that was completed would be a part of the 
environmental impact report as an appendix and no new information would be provided 
to the City for decision making.  Ms. Zinn also indicated that the two projects along 
Rosecrans were considered for the traffic analysis and the maximum trip generation for 
this project would be 20 trips during the pm peak hour.  The City has placed a condition 
that the applicant pay for traffic signal improvements that would help with the traffic on 
this road.  Ms. Zinn further stated that there is no connection between this project and the 
bridge project that was brought up by Mr. Nyland.  
 
Director of Planning Wayne Morrell commented that although, T & B Planning prepared 
the environmental document, the City vets these projects through an independent 
environmental consultant and based upon their opinion and expertise decide if an 
Environmental Impact Report, Initial Study and/or Mitigated Negative Declaration is 
required.    
 
Having no further questions or comments, Chairperson Jimenez closed the Public 
Hearing at 7:13 p.m. and requested a motion on first Item No. 10 then on No. 9.  



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 8 
 

It was moved by Vice Chairperson Aranda, seconded by Commissioner Mora to approve 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 78229, and the recommendations regarding this matter, which 
passed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  Aranda, Arnold, Mora, and Jimenez  
Nayes: None 
Absent:  Ybarra 
 
It was moved by Vice Chairperson Aranda, seconded by Commissioner Mora to approve 
Development Plan Approval Case No. 927 & Conditional Use Permit Case No. 782, and 
the recommendations regarding this matter, which passed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  Aranda, Arnold, Mora, and Jimenez  
Nayes: None 
Absent:  Ybarra 
 
Assistant City Attorney Richard L. Adams, II read the City’s appeal process to inform the 
Planning Commission and public.     
 

CONSENT ITEMS 
 

12. CONSENT ITEMS 
A. CONSENT ITEM 

Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 20 and Entertainment Conditional 
Use Permit Case No. 12 
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
Find that the subject use is in compliance with all of the conditions of approval as 
set forth in the initial approval of Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 20 
and Entertainment Conditional Use Permit Case No.12, and request that this matter 
be brought back before November 13, 2022, for another compliance review report. 
The Planning Commission shall note that this matter may be brought back to the 
Commission at any time should the applicant violate any conditions of approval or 
any City Codes, or should there be a need to modify, add, or remove a condition of 
approval. 

 
B. CONSENT ITEM 

Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 23 
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
Find that the subject use is in compliance with all of the conditions of approval set 
forth in the initial approval of Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 23, and 
request that this matter be brought back before November 13, 2022, for another 
compliance review report. The Planning Commission shall note that this matter may 
be brought back to the Commission at any time should the applicant violate any 
conditions of approval or any City Codes, or should there be a need to modify, add, 
or remove a condition of approval. 

 
C. CONSENT ITEM 

Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 40 



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 9 
 

Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
Find that the subject use is in compliance with all of the conditions of approval set 
forth in the initial approval of Alcohol Sales Conditional Use Permit Case No. 40, 
and request that this matter be brought back before November 13, 2022, for another 
compliance review report. The Planning Commission shall note that this matter may 
be brought back to the Commission at any time should the applicant violate any 
conditions of approval or any City Codes, or should there be a need to modify, add, 
or remove a condition of approval. 

 
D. CONSENT ITEM 

Conditional Use Permit Case No. 542-4 
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
 Find that the continued operation and maintenance of a church use, if conducted 

in strict compliance with the conditions of approval, will be harmonious with 
adjoining properties and surrounding uses in the area and will be in conformance 
with the overall purposes and objectives of the Zoning Regulations and 
consistent with the goals, policies, and programs of the City’s General Plan. 

 Require that Conditional Use Permit Case No. 542, be subject to a compliance 
review in five (5) years, on or before, November 13, 2022, to ensure that the use 
is still operating in strict compliance with the conditions of approval as contained 
within this staff report. 

 
E. CONSENT ITEM 

Conditional Use Permit Case No. 646-1  
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
 Find that the continued operation and maintenance of a church use, if conducted 

in strict compliance with the conditions of approval, will be harmonious with 
adjoining properties and surrounding uses in the area and will be in conformance 
with the overall purposes and objectives of the Zoning Regulations and consistent 
with the goals, policies, and programs of the City’s General Plan. 

 Require that Conditional Use Permit Case No. 646, be subject to a compliance 
review in five (5) years, on or before, November 13, 2022, to ensure that the use 
is still operating in strict compliance with the conditions of approval as contained 
within this staff report. 

 
F. CONSENT ITEM 

Conditional Use Permit Case No. 664-1 
Recommendation: That the Planning Commission:  
 Find that the continued operation and maintenance of an unmanned wireless 

telecommunication facility, if conducted in strict compliance with the conditions 
of approval, will be harmonious with adjoining properties and surrounding uses 
in the area; and 

 Require that extension of Conditional Use Permit Case No. 664-1 be subject to 
reconsideration in ten (10) years, on or before November 13, 2027, to ensure 
the use is consistent with the wireless ordinance and operating in strict 
compliance with the conditions of approval as contained within this report. 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Arnold, seconded by Commissioner Mora to approve 



Minutes of the November 13, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting  
 

 

Page 10 
 

Consent Item Nos. 12A-12F and the recommendations regarding these items, which 
passed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  Aranda, Arnold, Mora, and Jimenez  
Nayes: None 
Absent:  Ybarra 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

13.   The following announcements were made: 
 
Commissioners made the following announcements: 
 
 Commissioner Mora invited everyone to the City’s Tree Lighting event on December 

2, 2017.  
 Commissioner Arnold announced that he will be receiving the Santa Fe Springs 

Residential Citizen of the Year on Thursday, November 16, 2017.   
 

Staff made the following announcements: 
 
 Planning staff wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.  
 Director of Planning Wayne Morrell welcomed the members of City of Commerce 

Planning Commission, Vice Chairperson Kevin Lainez and Commissioner Evelyn 
Serfozo to our meeting.  
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chairperson Jimenez adjourned the meeting in memory of Estella Collazo at 7:18 p.m. 
 

 
 _____________________ 
 Gabriel Jimenez  
 Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________      
Teresa Cavallo Date 
Planning Secretary 

























































































































EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY 

AND 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

 
 

SOCCER FACILITY 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD 

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA 
 

 
 
 

LEAD AGENCY: 
 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS  
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

11710 TELEGRAPH ROAD 
SANTA FE SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA 90670 

 
 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 
 

BLODGETT BAYLOSIS ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
2211 S. HACIENDA BOULEVARD, SUITE 107 
HACIENDA HEIGHTS, CALIFORNIA 91745 

 

NOVEMBER 17, 2017 
SFSP 050 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section   Page 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Project Location ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Environmental Setting ............................................................................................................................. 7 

4. Project Description .................................................................................................................................. 7 

5. Discretionary Actions ............................................................................................................................. 11 

6. Summary of Environmental Analysis .................................................................................................... 11 

7. Mitigation Measures ............................................................................................................................. 20 

8. Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................. 20 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 3 

1. INTRODUCTION 

This Initial Study evaluates the environmental impacts associated with the operation of a soccer facility 

within a 1.09-acre (47,670 square-foot) site located at 13045 Los Nietos Road, within the M-2 (Heavy 

Manufacturing) Zone.  The project site is occupied by two existing buildings, referred to herein as 

“Building 1” and “Building 2.”  Building 1 has a total square footage of 5,313 square feet and Building 2 has 

a total square footage of 4,011 square feet.  The two existing buildings will be used by the occupant, 

Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy (B.E.S.A.), for training and field activities, office uses, and storage uses.  

On-site improvements will include the installation of a 75-foot wide by 112-foot long outdoor artificial turf 

field and the re-grading of the accessible paths of travel and parking.  Parking will be provided on on-site 

and off-site surface parking areas.  The off-site parking will be provided through a shared parking 

agreement with a neighboring property 850 feet to the west.  The on-site and off-site surface parking 

areas will include a total of 65 stalls.  Access to the proposed project will be provided by two existing 

driveways located on the north side of Los Nietos Road.  Lastly, the existing and proposed landscaping for 

the project site will total approximately 3,725 square feet.  The City of Santa Fe Springs is the designated 

Lead Agency for the proposed project and will be responsible for the project’s environmental review.  The 

operation of the soccer facility is considered to be a project under the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) and, as a result, the project is subject to the City’s environmental review process.  The project 

Applicant is Frank Lopez, 9213 Banta Road, Pico Rivera, CA, 90660.  

The City determined, as part of the Initial Study’s preparation, that a Mitigated Negative Declaration is 

the appropriate environmental document for the proposed project’s CEQA review.  Certain projects or 

actions may also require oversight approvals or permits from other public agencies.  The attached Initial 

Study and the Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration will be forwarded to 

responsible agencies, trustee agencies, and the public for review and comment.  A 20-day public review 

period will be provided to allow these entities and other interested parties to comment on the proposed 

project and the findings of this Initial Study.  Questions and/or comments should be submitted to the 

following individual:  

Vince Velasco, Planning Consultant 

City of Santa Fe Springs, Planning and Development Department 

11710 East Telegraph Road 

Santa Fe Springs, California 90670 

562-868-0511 

2. PROJECT LOCATION  

The project site is located on the northern portion of the City of Santa Fe Springs, on the north side of Los 

Nietos Road, in between Greenleaf Avenue to the west and Painter Avenue to the east.  The location of 

Santa Fe Springs in a regional context is shown in Exhibit 1.  A citywide map is provided in Exhibit 2.  The 

project site’s legal address is 13045 Los Nietos Road, Santa Fe Springs, California 90670.  The Assessor 

Parcel Number (APN) applicable to the site is 8167-005-026.  A vicinity map is provided in Exhibit 3.  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 4 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
REGIONAL LOCATION 

SOURCE: QUANTUM GIS 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 5 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 
CITYWIDE MAP 

SOURCE: QUANTUM GIS 
 

Project 
Site 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 6 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 
LOCAL MAP 
SOURCE: QUANTUM GIS 

 

Project Site 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 7 

3. ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING  

The 1.09-acre site is surrounded by industrial uses on all sides.  Surrounding land uses in the vicinity of 

the project site are listed below:  

● North of the Project Site.  A mix of industrial uses are located north of the project site.  Barton 

Road extends in a northwest-southeast orientation approximately 575 feet north of the project 

site.  St. Paul High School is located approximately 0.25 miles northwest of the project site.  A 

single-family residential neighborhood is located approximately 650 feet north of the project site.   

● South of the Project Site.  Los Nietos Road extends in a northwest-southeast orientation and 

abuts the project site to the south.  A mix of industrial uses are located south of Los Nietos Road.   

● East of the Project Site.  Painter Avenue extends in a southwest-northeast orientation 

approximately 600 feet east of the project site.  Richard L. Graves Middle School is located 

approximately 500 feet east of the project site and Lake Marie Elementary School is located 

approximately 0.26 miles east of the project site.  Both schools are located within South Whittier.  

Further east is a single-family residential neighborhood. 

● West of the Project Site.  A mix of industrial uses is located west of the project site.  Greenleaf 

Avenue is located approximately 0.20 miles west of the project site.   

Two unoccupied industrial buildings are currently located on the project site.  The remainder of the 

project site is paved in concrete and asphalt and landscaping is located along the Los Nietos Road 

frontage.  These existing buildings and the outdoor area will be used by the Ballmaster Elite Soccer 

Academy.  An aerial photograph of the project site and the surrounding area is provided in Exhibit 4. 

4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The proposed project will involve the operation of a soccer facility within a 1.09-acre (47,670 square-foot) 

site located within the M-2 (Heavy Manufacturing) Zone.  The proposed project will consist of the 

following elements: 

●  Project Site.  The project site has a total land area of 47,670 square feet (1.09 acres) and is 

currently occupied by two vacant buildings.  In addition, the project site is covered over in 

impervious surfaces used for parking.  The proposed project will involve the operation of two 

indoor soccer training studios and an outdoor soccer turf field within the aforementioned existing 

buildings and lot.   

 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 
AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 

SOURCE: GOOGLE EARTH 

 

Project Site 

Neighboring property 
that will provide off-

site parking for 
project site 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 9 

●  Building Characteristics.  The two vacant buildings currently located on-site will be redeveloped 

to accommodate the indoor soccer training studios.  The building located on the center of the 

project site will be Indoor Training Studio #1 and will have a total floor area of 5,313 square feet.  

The building located on the northwestern portion of the project site will be Indoor Training 

Studio #2 and will have a total floor area of 4,011 square feet.  The two existing buildings will be 

used by Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy (B.E.S.A.) for training and field activities, office uses, 

and storage uses. 

●  Parking Characteristics.  Parking for the proposed use will be provided within on-site and off-site 

surface parking areas.  The on-site parking areas will be located on the south and east sides of 

Indoor Training Studio #1 and will include 27 standard stalls, ten compact stalls, and three ADA-

compliant stalls.  The off-site parking will be provided through a shared parking agreement with a 

neighboring property 850 feet to the west.  The off-site parking stalls will include 25 standard 

stalls that will be utilized when the other business is off-hours.  The on-site and off-site surface 

parking areas will include a total of 65 parking stalls.   

● Site Access.  Access to the proposed development will be provided by two existing driveways that 

will include a 21-foot-wide driveway and a second 17-foot-wide driveway.  Both driveways are 

located on the north side of Los Nietos Road.  Metal gates are currently located at the entrance 

and exit of the site and will remain upon project completion.   

● New Grading and Paving.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project involve the re-

grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation of an outdoor 

artificial turf field, and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  

The re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking will ensure that the site 

will be graded so that stormwater runoff will be directed to the curbs and gutters on Los Nietos 

Road.   

● Turf Area.  The outdoor turf field will be developed directly to the east of Indoor Training Studio 

#2.  The outdoor turf field will be 112 feet in length and 75 feet in width and will have a total land 

area of 8,400 square feet.  Located to the south of the outdoor turf field will be a standing area for 

spectators.   

● Landscaping.  A total of 3,725 square feet will be dedicated for landscaping and will include both 

existing and proposed landscaping.  The existing landscaping includes 1,946 square feet of land 

area along the Los Nietos Road frontage.  An additional 1,779 square feet of landscaping will be 

installed along the Los Nietos frontage and throughout the parking areas. 

The conceptual site plan is shown in Exhibit 5.   



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 10 

 

 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 5

 
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

U
A

L
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 
S

O
U

R
C

E
: 

 R
. G

. D
E

S
IG

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 11 

5. DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS 

A Discretionary Action is an action taken by a government agency (for this project, the government agency 

is the City of Santa Fe Springs) that calls for an exercise of judgment in deciding whether to approve a 

project.  The proposed project will require the following approvals: 

● Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 781 to allow the soccer facility use on property located at 13045 

Los Nietos Road within the M-2 Heavy Manufacturing Zone; 

● Modification Permit (MOD) 1283 to allow a reduction in the number of required on-site parking 

stalls from 65 spaces to 40 spaces (the applicant will have an agreement with the property owner 

of the property located 850 feet to the west to allow for 25 additional parking spaces for this use 

when the other business if off-hours); 

● Modification Permit (MOD) 1284 to allow a reduction in the required landscaping along the 

frontage of the property from 3,054 square feet to 2,560 square feet; and, 

● The adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the adoption of the Mitigation 

Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP).   

6. SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 

This section of the attached Initial Study analyzes the potential environmental impacts that may result 

from the proposed project’s implementation.  The issue areas evaluated in this Initial Study include the 

following:  

Aesthetics (Section 3.1);  

Agricultural and Forestry Resources (Section 

3.2); 

Air Quality (Section 3.3); 

Biological Resources (Section 3.4); 

Cultural Resources (Section 3.5); 

Geology and Soils (Section 3.6);  

Greenhouse Gas Emissions; (Section 3.7); 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials (Section 

3.8);  

Hydrology and Water Quality (Section 3.9);  

Land Use and Planning (Section 3.10);  

Mineral Resources (Section 3.11);  

Noise (Section 3.12);  

Population and Housing (Section 3.13);  

Public Services (Section 3.14);  

Recreation (Section 3.15); 

Transportation and Circulation (Section 3.16);  

Tribal Cultural Resources (Section 3.17); 

Utilities (Section 3.18); and,  

Mandatory Findings of Significance (Section 

3.19). 
 

The environmental analysis included in the Initial Study reflects the Initial Study Checklist format used by 

the City of Santa Fe Springs in its environmental review process.  Under each issue area, an analysis of 

impacts is provided in the form of questions and answers.  The analysis then provides a response to the 

individual questions.  For the evaluation of potential impacts, questions are stated and an answer is 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 12 

provided according to the analysis undertaken as part of this Initial Study's preparation.  To each 

question, there are four possible responses: 

● No Impact.  The proposed project will not have any measurable environmental impact on the 

environment. 

● Less Than Significant Impact.  The proposed project may have the potential for affecting the 

environment, although these impacts will be below levels or thresholds that the City of Santa Fe 

Springs or other responsible agencies consider to be significant.   

● Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation.  The proposed project may have the potential to 

generate impacts that will have a significant impact on the environment.  However, the level of 

impact may be reduced to levels that are less than significant with the implementation of 

mitigation measures. 

● Potentially Significant Impact.  The proposed project may result in environmental impacts that 

are significant. 

This Initial Study will assist the City in making a determination as to whether there is a potential for 

significant adverse impacts on the environment associated with the implementation of the proposed 

project.  The environmental analysis provided in Section 3 of the attached Initial Study indicates that the 

proposed project will not result in any potentially significant impacts on the environment.  For this 

reason, the City of Santa Fe Springs determined that a Mitigated Negative Declaration is the appropriate 

CEQA document for the proposed project.  The findings of the attached Initial Study are summarized in 

Table 1 provided below and on the following pages.   

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Section 3.1 Aesthetics.  Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?    X 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not 
limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 
state scenic highway? 

   X 

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of 
the site and its surroundings?     X 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would 
adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area? 

  X  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 13 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Section 3.2 Agriculture & Forestry Resources.  Would the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of 
Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps 
prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 
use?  

   X 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a 
Williamson Act Contract?  

   X 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest 
land (as defined in Public Resources Code §12220[g]), timberland 
(as defined in Public Resources Code §4526), or timberland zoned 
production (as defined in Government Code §51104[g])? 

   X 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to 
non-forest use? 

   X 

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due 
to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland 
to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest 
use?  

   X 

Section 3.3 Air Quality.  Would the project: 

a) Conflict with, or obstruct implementation of, the applicable air 
quality plan? 

   X 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to 
an existing or projected air quality violation? 

  X  

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any 
criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment 
under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard 
(including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative 
thresholds for ozone precursors)? 

  X  

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 
concentrations? 

  X  

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of 
people? 

   X 

Section 3.4 Biological Resources.  Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through 
habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife or U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

   X 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or 
other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?  

   X 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 14 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected 
wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means? 

   X 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native 
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established 
native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use 
of native wildlife nursery sites? 

   X 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting 
biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or 
ordinance? 

   X 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation 
Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved 
local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

   X 

Section 3.5 Cultural Resources.  Would the project: 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a 
historical resource as defined in §15064.5 of the CEQA 
Guidelines? 

   X 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an 
archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5 of the CEQA 
Guidelines? 

  X  

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource 
or site or unique geologic feature? 

  X  

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside 
of dedicated cemeteries? 

   X 

Section 3.6 Geology & Soils.  Would the project: 

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving rupture 
of a known earthquake fault (as delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a 
known fault), strong seismic ground shaking, seismic-related 
ground failure including liquefaction, or landslides? 

  X  

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?   X  

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that 
would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially 
result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction, or collapse? 

  X  

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the 
California Building Code (2012), creating substantial risks to life 
or property? 

   X 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 15 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic 
tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are 
not available for the disposal of wastewater? 

   X 

Section 3.7 Greenhouse Gas Emissions.  Would the project: 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or 
indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment? 

  X  

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted 
for the purpose of reducing emissions of greenhouse gases?    X 

Section 3.8 Hazards & Hazardous Materials.  Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment 
through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials? 

  X  

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment 
through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

 X   

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely 
hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile 
of an existing or proposed school? 

   X 

d) Be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous 
material sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment? 

   X 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or a public use airport, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the project area? 

   X 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 
project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the project area? 

   X 

g) Impair implementation of, or physically interfere with, an 
adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?    X 

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury 
or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are 
adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed 
with wildlands? 

   X 

Section 3.9 Hydrology & Water Quality.  Would the project:  

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge 
requirements? 

  X  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 16 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere 
substantially with groundwater recharge such that there would be 
a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local 
groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing 
nearby wells would drop to a level that would not support existing 
land uses or planned uses for which permits have been granted)?  

   X 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 
area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river, in a manner that would result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off-site? 

  X  

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 
area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff 
in a manner that would result in flooding on- or off-site? 

  X  

e) Create or contribute runoff water that would exceed the 
capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or 
provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 

  X  

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?    X 

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped 
on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map 
or other flood hazard delineation map? 

   X 

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which 
would impede or redirect flood flows? 

   X 

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or 
death involving flooding, including flooding as a result of the 
failure of a levee or dam? 

   X 

j) Result in inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?    X 

Section 3.10 Land Use & Planning.  Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established community, or otherwise result 
in an incompatible land use? 

   X 

b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation 
of an agency with jurisdiction over the project (including, but not 
limited to, the general plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or 
zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

   X 

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or 
natural community conservation plan? 

   X 

Section 3.11 Mineral Resources.  Would the project: 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource 
that would be of value to the region and the residents of the State? 

   X 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 17 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral 
resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan or other land use plan? 

   X 

Section 3.12 Noise.  Would the project: 

a) Result in exposure of persons to, or generation of, noise levels 
in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

  X  

b) Result in the exposure of persons to, or the generation of, 
excessive groundborne noise levels?   X  

c) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise 
levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the 
project?  

  X  

d) Result in a substantial temporary or periodic increase in 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing 
without the project? 

  X  

e) For a project located with an airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

   X 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 
project expose people residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

   X 

Section 3.13 Population & Housing.  Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly 
(e.g., by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (e.g., 
through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?  

  X  

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating 
the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?  

   X 

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing elsewhere?    X 

Section 3.14 Public Services.  Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any 
of the public services: 

a) Fire protection services?   X  
b) Police protection services?   X  
c) School services?    X  
d) Other governmental services?   X  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 18 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Section 3.15 Recreation.  Would the project: 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or 
other recreational facilities such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 

  X  

b) Include recreational facilities or require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse 
physical effect on the environment? 

   X 

Section 3.16 Transportation & Circulation.  Would the project: 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy 
establishing measures of effectiveness for the performance of the 
circulation system, taking into account all modes of transportation 
including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, including, but not limited 
to, intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian and 
bicycle paths, and mass transit? 

  X  

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, 
including, but not limited to, level of service standards and travel 
demand measures, or other standards established by the county 
congestion management agency for designated roads or highways? 

   X 

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an 
increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in 
substantial safety risks?   

   X 

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., 
sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses 
(e.g., farm equipment)? 

  X  

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?    X 

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding 
public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise 
decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? 

   X 

Section 3.17 Tribal Cultural Resources.  Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of 
a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape 
that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a 
California Native American tribe, and that is: 

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of 
Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources 
as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k)? 

  X  

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and 
supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to 
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code 
Section 5024.1?  In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) 
of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall 
consider the significance of the resource to a California Native 
American tribe. 

  X  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
PAGE 19 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Section 3.17 Utilities.  Would the project: 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable 
Regional Water Quality Control Board?   X  

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or 
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing facilities, 
the construction of which could cause significant environmental 
effects? 

   X 

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water 
drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant environmental 
effects?  

  X  

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project 
from existing entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded 
entitlements needed? 

  X  

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider 
that serves or may serve the project that it has inadequate capacity 
to serve the project’s projected demand in addition to the 
provider’s existing commitments? 

   X 

f) Be served by a landfill with insufficient permitted capacity to 
accommodate the project’s solid waste disposal needs?     X 

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations 
related to solid waste? 

   X 

Section 3.18 Mandatory Findings of Significance.  The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed 
project: 

a) Will not have the potential to degrade the quality of the 
environment, with the implementation of the recommended 
standard conditions and mitigation measures included herein. 

   X 

b) Will not have the potential to achieve short-term goals to the 
disadvantage of long-term environmental goals, with the 
implementation of the recommended standard conditions and 
mitigation measures referenced herein. 

   X 

c) Will not have impacts that are individually limited, but 
cumulatively considerable, when considering planned or proposed 
development in the immediate vicinity, with the implementation 
of the recommended standard conditions and mitigation measures 
contained herein. 

   X 

d) Will not have environmental effects that will adversely affect 
humans, either directly or indirectly, with the implementation of 
the recommended standard conditions and mitigation measures 
contained herein. 

   X 

 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY PAGE 20 

7. MITIGATION MEASURES 

The following mitigation is required due to the high occupancy of the proposed soccer facility use: 

Mitigation Measure No. 1 (Hazards and Hazardous Materials).  Wall-mounted methane gas 

detectors must be installed and maintained throughout the proposed project site in order to detect an 

intrusion of methane into the proposed project.  The wall-mounted methane gas detectors must be 

installed and maintained in compliance with all requirements set by the City of Santa Fe Springs 

Department of Fire and Rescue.   

8. CONCLUSION 

The following findings can be made regarding the Mandatory Findings of Significance set forth in Section 

15065 of the CEQA Guidelines based on the results of this environmental assessment: 

● The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have the potential 

to degrade the quality of the environment. 

● The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have the potential 

to achieve short-term goals to the disadvantage of long-term environmental goals. 

● The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have impacts that 

are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable, when considering planned or proposed 

development in the immediate vicinity. 

● The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have 

environmental effects that will adversely affect humans, either directly or indirectly.  

In addition, pursuant to Section 21081(a) of the Public Resources Code, findings must be adopted by the 

decision-maker coincidental to the approval of a Mitigated Negative Declaration, which relates to the 

Mitigation Monitoring Program.  These findings shall be incorporated as part of the decision-maker’s 

findings of fact, in response to AB-3180 and in compliance with the requirements of the Public Resources 

Code.  In accordance with the requirements of Section 21081(a) and 21081.6 of the Public Resources 

Code, the City of Santa Fe Springs can make the following additional findings: 

● A Mitigation Reporting and Monitoring Program will be required; and, 

● An accountable enforcement agency or monitoring agency shall not be identified for the 

mitigation measures adopted as part of the decision-maker’s final determination. 

 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

 

PAGE 1 

 

INITIAL STUDY  
AND 

MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
 

 

SOCCER FACILITY 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD 

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

 
 
 

LEAD AGENCY: 
 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS  
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

11710 TELEGRAPH ROAD 
SANTA FE SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA 90670 

 
REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

BLODGETT BAYLOSIS ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
2211 S. HACIENDA BOULEVARD, SUITE 107 
HACIENDA HEIGHTS, CALIFORNIA 91745 

 
 

NOVEMBER 17, 2017 
SFSP 045  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

 

PAGE 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

 

PAGE 3 

MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

PROJECT NAME: 13045 Los Nietos Road Soccer Facility. 

APPLICANT: Frank Lopez, 9213 Banta Road, Pico Rivera, CA, 90660. 

ADDRESS:  13045 Los Nietos Road, Santa Fe Springs, CA, 90670.  Assessor Parcel Number 
(APN): 8167-005-026. 

CITY/COUNTY:   Santa Fe Springs, Los Angeles County. 

DESCRIPTION:   The City of Santa Fe Springs, in its capacity as the Lead Agency, is considering an 

application to operate a soccer facility within a 1.09-acre (47,670 square-foot) site 

located at 13045 Los Nietos Road, within the M-2 (Heavy Manufacturing) Zone.  The 

project site is occupied by two existing buildings, referred to herein as “Building 1” 

and “Building 2.”  Building 1 has a total square footage of 5,313 square feet and 

Building 2 has a total square footage of 4,011 square feet.  The two existing buildings 

will be used by the occupant, Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy (B.E.S.A.), for training 

and field activities, office uses, and storage uses.  On-site improvements will include 

the installation of a 75-foot wide by 112-foot long outdoor artificial turf field and the 

re-grading of the accessible paths of travel and parking.  Parking will be provided on 

on-site and off-site surface parking areas.  The off-site parking will be provided 

through a shared parking agreement with a neighboring property 850 feet to the 

west.  The on-site and off-site surface parking areas will include a total of 65 stalls.  

Access to the proposed project will be provided by two existing driveways located on 

the north side of Los Nietos Road.  Lastly, the existing and proposed landscaping for 

the project site will total approximately 3,725 square feet.  Ballmaster Elite Soccer 

Academy (B.E.S.A.) is proposing to operate Monday through Thursday, 9:00 AM to 

11:00 PM and Friday through Sunday, 7:00 AM to 11:00 PM.  

Discretionary approvals required as part of the proposed project’s implementation 

include the following: 

● Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 781; 

● Modification Permit (MOD) 1283; 

● Modification Permit (MOD) 1284; and, 

● Approval of the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and Mitigation 

Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP).  

FINDINGS:   The environmental analysis provided in the attached Initial Study indicates that the 
proposed project will not result in any significant adverse impacts with the 
implementation of the appropriate mitigation measures.  For this reason, the City of 
Santa Fe Springs determined that a Mitigated Negative Declaration is the 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

 

PAGE 4 

appropriate CEQA document for the proposed project.  The following findings may be 
made based on the analysis contained in the attached Initial Study: 

● The proposed project will not have the potential to degrade the quality of the 
environment. 

● The proposed project will not have the potential to achieve short-term goals to 
the disadvantage of long-term environmental goals.    

● The proposed project will not have impacts that are individually limited, but 
cumulatively considerable, when considering planned or proposed development 
in the City. 

● The proposed project will not have environmental effects that will adversely 
affect humans, either directly or indirectly. 

The environmental analysis is provided in the attached Initial Study prepared for the 
proposed project.  The project is also described in greater detail in the attached Initial 
Study.   

 

Signature        Date 

City of Santa Fe Springs Planning and Development Department       
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

 

PAGE 5 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section        Page 

1.0 Introduction ...................................................................................... 7 
1.1 Purpose of the Initial Study ................................................................................................... 7 
1.2 Initial Study’s Organization .................................................................................................. 8 
1.3 Initial Study Checklist ........................................................................................................... 9 

2.0 Project Description ........................................................................... 17 
2.1 Project Overview  ................................................................................................................. 17 
2.2 Project Location ................................................................................................................... 17 
2.3 Environmental Setting ......................................................................................................... 21 
2.4 Project Description ............................................................................................................... 21 
2.5 Project Objectives ................................................................................................................ 28 
2.6 Discretionary Actions .......................................................................................................... 28 

3.0 Environmental Analysis ................................................................... 29 
3.1 Aesthetics ............................................................................................................................ 30 
3.2 Agricultural and Forestry Resources .................................................................................. 32 
3.3 Air Quality ........................................................................................................................... 34 
3.4 Biological Resources ........................................................................................................... 42 
3.5 Cultural Resources ............................................................................................................... 47 
3.6 Geology and Soils ................................................................................................................ 50 
3.7 Greenhouse Gas Emissions .................................................................................................. 55 
3.8 Hazards and Hazardous Materials ..................................................................................... 58 
3.9 Hydrology and Water Quality ............................................................................................. 62 
3.10 Land Use and Planning ....................................................................................................... 68 
3.11 Mineral Resources ................................................................................................................ 72 
3.12 Noise ..................................................................................................................................... 73 
3.13 Population and Housing ...................................................................................................... 79 
3.14 Public Services ...................................................................................................................... 81 
3.15 Recreation ........................................................................................................................... 84 
3.16 Transportation and Circulation  ......................................................................................... 85 
3.17 Tribal Cultural Resources ................................................................................................... 88 
3.18 Utilities ................................................................................................................................. 91 
3.19 Mandatory Findings of Significance ................................................................................... 94 

4.0 Conclusions ..................................................................................... 97 
4.1 Findings ................................................................................................................................ 97 
4.2 Mitigation Monitoring ......................................................................................................... 97 

5.0 References ....................................................................................... 99 
5.1 Preparers ............................................................................................................................. 99 
5.2 References ........................................................................................................................... 99 

Appendices .............................................................................................. 101 
Appendix A - Air Quality Worksheets .......................................................................................................... 103 
Appendix B - Traffic Letter Report ............................................................................................................... 125 
Appendix C - Utilities Worksheets ............................................................................................................... 135 

  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

 

PAGE 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 7 

SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION 

1.1 PURPOSE OF THE INITIAL STUDY 

This Initial Study evaluates the environmental impacts associated with the operation of a soccer facility 

within a 1.09-acre (47,670 square-foot) site located at 13045 Los Nietos Road, within the M-2 (Heavy 

Manufacturing) Zone.  The project site is occupied by two existing buildings, referred to herein as 

“Building 1” and “Building 2.”  Building 1 has a total square footage of 5,313 square feet and Building 2 has 

a total square footage of 4,011 square feet.  The two existing buildings will be used by the occupant, 

Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy (B.E.S.A.), for training and field activities, office uses, and storage uses.  

On-site improvements will include the installation of a 75-foot wide by 112-foot long outdoor artificial turf 

field and the re-grading of the accessible paths of travel and parking.  Parking will be provided on on-site 

and off-site surface parking areas.  The off-site parking will be provided through a shared parking 

agreement with a neighboring property 850 feet to the west.  The on-site and off-site surface parking 

areas will include a total of 65 stalls.  Access to the proposed project will be provided by two existing 

driveways located on the north side of Los Nietos Road.  Lastly, the existing and proposed landscaping for 

the project site will total approximately 3,725 square feet.  Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy (B.E.S.A.) is 

proposing to operate Monday through Thursday, 9:00 AM to 11:00 PM and Friday through Sunday, 7:00 

AM to 11:00 PM.1   

The City of Santa Fe Springs is the designated Lead Agency for the proposed project and will be 

responsible for the project’s environmental review.2  The operation of the proposed soccer facility is 

considered to be a project under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and, as a result, the 

project is subject to the City’s environmental review process.3  The project applicant is Frank Lopez, 9213 

Banta Road, Pico Rivera, CA, 90660.  Discretionary approvals required as part of the proposed project’s 

implementation include the following: 

 ● Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 781 to allow the soccer facility use on property located at 13045 

Los Nietos Road within the M-2 Heavy Manufacturing Zone; 

 ● Modification Permit (MOD) 1283 to allow a reduction in the number of required on-site 

parking stalls from 65 spaces to 40 spaces (the applicant will have an agreement with the 

property owner of the property located 850 feet to the west to allow for 25 additional parking 

spaces for this use when the other business if off-hours); 

 ● Modification Permit (MOD) 1284 to allow a reduction in the required landscaping along the 

frontage of the property from 3,054 square feet to 2,560 square feet; and, 

 ● Approval of the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and 

Reporting Program (MMRP).   

                                                 
1 R. G. Design Services.  Site Plan.  Site plan dated October 23, 2017.  
  
2  California, State of.  California Public Resources Code. Division 13, Chapter 2.5.  Definitions.  as Amended 2001.  §21067. 
 
3 California, State of.  Title 14. California Code of Regulations. Chapter 3.  Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 

Environmental Quality Act.  as Amended 1998 (CEQA Guidelines).  §15060 (b). 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 8 

As part of the proposed project’s environmental review, the City of Santa Fe Springs has authorized the 

preparation of this Initial Study.4  The primary purpose of CEQA is to ensure that decision-makers and 

the public understand the environmental implications of a specific action or project.  An additional 

purpose of this Initial Study is to ascertain whether the proposed project will have the potential for 

significant adverse impacts on the environment once it is implemented.  Pursuant to the CEQA 

Guidelines, additional purposes of this Initial Study include the following: 

● To provide the City of Santa Fe Springs with information to use as the basis for deciding whether 

to prepare an Environmental Impact Report (EIR), Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND), or 

Negative Declaration (ND) for a project; 

● To facilitate the project’s environmental assessment early in the design and development of the 

proposed project; 

● To eliminate unnecessary EIRs; and, 

● To determine the nature and extent of any impacts associated the proposed project. 

Although this Initial Study was prepared with consultant support, the analysis, conclusions, and findings 

made as part of its preparation fully represent the independent judgment and position of the City of Santa 

Fe Springs in its capacity as the Lead Agency.  The City determined, as part of this Initial Study’s 

preparation, that a Mitigated Negative Declaration is the appropriate environmental document for the 

proposed project’s CEQA review.  Certain projects or actions may also require oversight approvals or 

permits from other public agencies.  This Initial Study and the Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated 

Negative Declaration will be forwarded to responsible agencies, trustee agencies, and the public for 

review and comment.  A 20-day public review period will be provided to allow these entities and other 

interested parties to comment on the proposed project and the findings of this Initial Study.5  Questions 

and/or comments should be submitted to the following individual:  

Vince Velasco, Planning Consultant 

City of Santa Fe Springs, Planning and Development Department 

11710 East Telegraph Road 

Santa Fe Springs, California 90670 

562-868-0511 

1.2 INITIAL STUDY’S ORGANIZATION 

The following annotated outline summarizes the contents of this Initial Study: 

●  Section 1 - Introduction, provides the procedural context surrounding this Initial Study's 

preparation and insight into its composition.   

                                                 
4 California, State of.  Title 14. California Code of Regulations. Chapter 3.  Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 

Environmental Quality Act.  as Amended 1998 (CEQA Guidelines).  §15050. 
 
5 Ibid.  (CEQA Guidelines) §15060 (b). 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 9 

● Section 2 - Project Description, provides an overview of the existing environment as it relates to 

the project area and describes the proposed project’s physical and operational characteristics.   

● Section 3 - Environmental Analysis, includes an analysis of potential impacts associated with the 

construction (site improvement) and the subsequent operation of the proposed project.   

● Section 4 - Conclusions, summarizes the findings of the analysis. 

● Section 5 - References, identifies the sources used in the preparation of this Initial Study. 

1.3 INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST 

The environmental analysis provided in Section 3 of this Initial Study indicates that the proposed project 

will not result in any potentially significant impacts on the environment.  For this reason, the City of Santa 

Fe Springs determined that a Mitigated Negative Declaration is the appropriate CEQA document for the 

proposed project.  The findings of this Initial Study are summarized in Table 1-1 provided below and on 

the following pages.   

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Section 3.1 Aesthetics.  Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?    X 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not 
limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 
state scenic highway? 

   X 

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of 
the site and its surroundings?     X 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would 
adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area? 

  X  

Section 3.2 Agriculture & Forestry Resources.  Would the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of 
Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps 
prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 
use?  

   X 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a 
Williamson Act Contract?     X 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest 
land (as defined in Public Resources Code §12220[g]), timberland 
(as defined in Public Resources Code §4526), or timberland zoned 
production (as defined in Government Code §51104[g])? 

   X 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to 
non-forest use? 

   X 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 10 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due 
to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland 
to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest 
use?  

   X 

Section 3.3 Air Quality.  Would the project: 

a) Conflict with, or obstruct implementation of, the applicable air 
quality plan? 

   X 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to 
an existing or projected air quality violation? 

  X  

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any 
criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment 
under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard 
(including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative 
thresholds for ozone precursors)? 

  X  

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 
concentrations?   X  

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of 
people?    X 

Section 3.4 Biological Resources.  Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through 
habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife or U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

   X 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or 
other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?  

   X 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected 
wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means? 

   X 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native 
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established 
native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use 
of native wildlife nursery sites? 

   X 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting 
biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or 
ordinance? 

   X 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation 
Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved 
local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

   X 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 11 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Section 3.5 Cultural Resources.  Would the project: 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a 
historical resource as defined in §15064.5 of the CEQA 
Guidelines? 

   X 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an 
archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5 of the CEQA 
Guidelines? 

  X  

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource 
or site or unique geologic feature? 

  X  
d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside 
of dedicated cemeteries? 

   X 

Section 3.6 Geology & Soils.  Would the project: 

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving rupture 
of a known earthquake fault (as delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a 
known fault), strong seismic ground shaking, seismic-related 
ground failure including liquefaction, or landslides? 

  X  

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?   X  

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that 
would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially 
result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction, or collapse? 

  X  

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the 
California Building Code (2012), creating substantial risks to life 
or property? 

   X 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic 
tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are 
not available for the disposal of wastewater? 

   X 

Section 3.7 Greenhouse Gas Emissions.  Would the project: 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or 
indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment? 

  X  

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted 
for the purpose of reducing emissions of greenhouse gases? 

   X 

Section 3.8 Hazards & Hazardous Materials.  Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment 
through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials? 

  X  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 12 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment 
through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

 X   

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely 
hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile 
of an existing or proposed school? 

   X 

d) Be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous 
material sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment? 

   X 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or a public use airport, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the project area? 

   X 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 
project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the project area? 

   X 

g) Impair implementation of, or physically interfere with, an 
adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

   X 

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury 
or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are 
adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed 
with wildlands? 

   X 

Section 3.9 Hydrology & Water Quality.  Would the project:  

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge 
requirements? 

  X  

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere 
substantially with groundwater recharge such that there would be 
a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local 
groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing 
nearby wells would drop to a level that would not support existing 
land uses or planned uses for which permits have been granted)?  

   X 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 
area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river, in a manner that would result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off-site? 

  X  

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 
area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff 
in a manner that would result in flooding on- or off-site? 

  X  

e) Create or contribute runoff water that would exceed the 
capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or 
provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 

  X  

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?    X 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 13 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped 
on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map 
or other flood hazard delineation map? 

   X 

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which 
would impede or redirect flood flows?    X 

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or 
death involving flooding, including flooding as a result of the 
failure of a levee or dam? 

   X 

j) Result in inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?    X 

Section 3.10 Land Use & Planning.  Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established community, or otherwise result 
in an incompatible land use? 

   X 

b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation 
of an agency with jurisdiction over the project (including, but not 
limited to, the general plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or 
zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

   X 

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or 
natural community conservation plan? 

   X 

Section 3.11 Mineral Resources.  Would the project: 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource 
that would be of value to the region and the residents of the State? 

   X 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral 
resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan or other land use plan? 

   X 

Section 3.12 Noise.  Would the project: 

a) Result in exposure of persons to, or generation of, noise levels 
in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

  X  

b) Result in the exposure of persons to, or the generation of, 
excessive groundborne noise levels? 

  X  

c) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise 
levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the 
project?  

  X  

d) Result in a substantial temporary or periodic increase in 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing 
without the project? 

  X  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 14 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

e) For a project located with an airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

   X 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 
project expose people residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

   X 

Section 3.13 Population & Housing.  Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly 
(e.g., by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (e.g., 
through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?  

  X  

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating 
the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?  

   X 

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing elsewhere? 

   X 

Section 3.14 Public Services.  Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any 
of the public services: 

a) Fire protection services?   X  

b) Police protection services?   X  

c) School services?    X  

d) Other governmental services?   X  

Section 3.15 Recreation.  Would the project: 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or 
other recreational facilities such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 

  X  

b) Include recreational facilities or require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse 
physical effect on the environment? 

   X 

Section 3.16 Transportation & Circulation.  Would the project: 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy 
establishing measures of effectiveness for the performance of the 
circulation system, taking into account all modes of transportation 
including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, including, but not limited 
to, intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian and 
bicycle paths, and mass transit? 

  X  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 15 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, 
including, but not limited to, level of service standards and travel 
demand measures, or other standards established by the county 
congestion management agency for designated roads or highways? 

   X 

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an 
increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in 
substantial safety risks?   

   X 

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., 
sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses 
(e.g., farm equipment)? 

  X  

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?    X 

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding 
public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise 
decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? 

   X 

Section 3.17 Tribal Cultural Resources.  Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of 
a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape 
that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a 
California Native American tribe, and that is: 

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of 
Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources 
as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k)? 

  X  

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and 
supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to 
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code 
Section 5024.1?  In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) 
of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall 
consider the significance of the resource to a California Native 
American tribe. 

  X  

Section 3.17 Utilities.  Would the project: 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable 
Regional Water Quality Control Board? 

  X  

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or 
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing facilities, 
the construction of which could cause significant environmental 
effects? 

   X 

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water 
drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant environmental 
effects?  

  X  

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project 
from existing entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded 
entitlements needed? 

  X  

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider 
that serves or may serve the project that it has inadequate capacity 
to serve the project’s projected demand in addition to the 
provider’s existing commitments? 

   X 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 1 ● INTRODUCTION 

 
PAGE 16 

Table 1-1  
Summary (Initial Study Checklist) 

Environmental Issue Areas Examined 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

f) Be served by a landfill with insufficient permitted capacity to 
accommodate the project’s solid waste disposal needs?  

   X 

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations 
related to solid waste? 

   X 

Section 3.18 Mandatory Findings of Significance.  The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed 
project: 

a) Will not have the potential to degrade the quality of the 
environment, with the implementation of the recommended 
standard conditions and mitigation measures included herein. 

   X 

b) Will not have the potential to achieve short-term goals to the 
disadvantage of long-term environmental goals, with the 
implementation of the recommended standard conditions and 
mitigation measures referenced herein. 

   X 

c) Will not have impacts that are individually limited, but 
cumulatively considerable, when considering planned or proposed 
development in the immediate vicinity, with the implementation 
of the recommended standard conditions and mitigation measures 
contained herein. 

   X 

d) Will not have environmental effects that will adversely affect 
humans, either directly or indirectly, with the implementation of 
the recommended standard conditions and mitigation measures 
contained herein. 

   X 

 

 

 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 17 

SECTION 2 - PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2.1 PROJECT OVERVIEW 

The City of Santa Fe Springs, in its capacity as the Lead Agency, is considering an application to operate a 

soccer facility within a 1.09-acre (47,670 square-foot) site located at 13045 Los Nietos Road, within the M-

2 (Heavy Manufacturing) Zone.  The project site is occupied by two existing buildings, referred to herein 

as “Building 1” and “Building 2.”  Building 1 has a total square footage of 5,313 square feet and Building 2 

has a total square footage of 4,011 square feet.  The two existing buildings will be used by the occupant, 

Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy (B.E.S.A.), for training and field activities, office uses, and storage uses.  

On-site improvements will include the installation of a 75-foot wide by 112-foot long outdoor artificial turf 

field and the re-grading of the accessible paths of travel and parking.  Parking will be provided on on-site 

and off-site surface parking areas.  The off-site parking will be provided through a shared parking 

agreement with a neighboring property 850 feet to the west.  The on-site and off-site surface parking 

areas will include a total of 65 stalls.  Access to the proposed project will be provided by two existing 

driveways located on the north side of Los Nietos Road.  Lastly, the existing and proposed landscaping for 

the project site will total approximately 3,725 square feet.  Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy (B.E.S.A.) is 

proposing to operate Monday through Thursday, 9:00 AM to 11:00 PM and Friday through Sunday, 7:00 

AM to 11:00 PM.6   

2.2 PROJECT LOCATION  

The project site is located on the northern portion of the City of Santa Fe Springs, on the north side of Los 

Nietos Road, in between Greenleaf Avenue to the west and Painter Avenue to the east.  The City of Santa 

Fe Springs is located approximately 13 miles southeast of Downtown Los Angeles and 18 miles northwest 

of Downtown Santa Ana.  Santa Fe Springs is bounded on the north by Whittier and an unincorporated 

County area (West Whittier); on the east by Whittier, La Mirada, and an unincorporated County area 

(East Whittier); on the south by Cerritos and Norwalk; and on the west by Pico Rivera and Downey.  

Major physiographic features located in the vicinity of the City include the San Gabriel River (located 

approximately 2.60 miles west of the project site) and the Puente Hills (located approximately 2.70 miles 

northeast of the site).  Regional access to Santa Fe Springs is possible from two area freeways: the Santa 

Ana Freeway (I-5) and the San Gabriel River Freeway (I-605).  The I-5 Freeway extends along the City’s 

western and southern portions in a northwest-southeast orientation and the I-605 Freeway extends along 

the City’s westerly side in a southwest-northeast orientation.7  The location of Santa Fe Springs in a 

regional context is shown in Exhibit 2-1.  A citywide map is provided in Exhibit 2-2. 

The project site’s legal address is 13045 Los Nietos Road, Santa Fe Springs, California 90670.  The project 

site is located on the north side of Los Nietos Road, between Greenleaf Avenue to the west and Painter 

Avenue to the east.  Vehicular access to the project site will be provided by two existing driveways located 

on the north side of Los Nietos Road.  The Assessor Parcel Number (APN) applicable to the site is 8167-

005-026.  A local map is provided in Exhibit 2-3.   
                                                 
6 R. G. Design Services.  Site Plan.  Site plan dated October 23, 2017.  
  
7 Google Earth.  Website accessed October 9, 2017.  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 18 

 

 
 
 
  

EXHIBIT 2-1 
REGIONAL LOCATION 

SOURCE: QUANTUM GIS 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 2-2 
CITYWIDE MAP 

SOURCE: QUANTUM GIS 
 

Project 
Site 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 20 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2-3 
LOCAL MAP 
SOURCE: QUANTUM GIS 

 

Project Site 

Santa Fe Springs 

Not part of City 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 21 

2.3 ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING  

The 1.09-acre site is surrounded by industrial uses on all sides.  Exhibit 2-4 shows an aerial photograph of 

the project site and the adjacent development.  Exhibits 2-5 through 2-7 show photographs of the project 

site.  Surrounding land uses in the vicinity of the project site are listed below: 8 

● North of the Project Site.  A mix of industrial uses are located north of the project site.  Barton 

Road extends in a northwest-southeast orientation approximately 575 feet north of the project 

site.  St. Paul High School is located approximately 0.25 miles northwest of the project site.  A 

single-family residential neighborhood is located approximately 650 feet north of the project site.   

● South of the Project Site.  Los Nietos Road extends in a northwest-southeast orientation and 

abuts the project site to the south.  A mix of industrial uses are located south of Los Nietos Road.   

● East of the Project Site.  Painter Avenue extends in a southwest-northeast orientation 

approximately 600 feet east of the project site.  Richard L. Graves Middle School is located 

approximately 500 feet east of the project site and Lake Marie Elementary School is located 

approximately 0.26 miles east of the project site.  Both schools are located within South Whittier.  

Further east is a single-family residential neighborhood. 

● West of the Project Site.  A mix of industrial uses is located west of the project site.  Greenleaf 

Avenue is located approximately 0.20 miles west of the project site.   

Two unoccupied industrial buildings are currently located on the project site.  The remainder of the 

project site is paved in concrete and asphalt and landscaping is located along the Los Nietos Road 

frontage.  These existing buildings and the outdoor area will be used by the Ballmaster Elite Soccer 

Academy.  

2.4 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2.4.1 PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT 

The proposed project will involve the operation of a soccer facility within a 1.09-acre (47,670 square-foot) 

site located within the M-2 (Heavy Manufacturing) Zone.  The proposed project will consist of the 

following elements:9 

●  Project Site.  The project site has a total land area of 47,670 square feet (1.09 acres) and is 

currently occupied by two vacant buildings.  In addition, the project site is covered over in 

impervious surfaces used for parking.  The proposed project will involve the operation of two 

indoor soccer training studios and an outdoor soccer turf field within the aforementioned existing 

buildings and lot.    

                                                 
8 Google Earth.  Website accessed October 11, 2017. 
 
9 R. G. Design Services.  Site Plan.  Site plan dated October 23, 2017.   



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 22 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 2-4 
AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 

SOURCE: GOOGLE EARTH 

 

Project Site 

Neighboring property 
that will provide off-

site parking for 
project site 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 23 

 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 2-5 
PHOTOGRAPHS OF PROJECT SITE 

SOURCE: BLODGETT BAYLOSIS ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING  

View of future Indoor Training Studio #1 from the Los Nietos 
Road frontage, facing northeast 

View of east driveway from the Los Nietos Road frontage, 
facing north 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 24 

  

EXHIBIT 2-6 
PHOTOGRAPHS OF PROJECT SITE 

SOURCE: BLODGETT BAYLOSIS ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING  

View of east driveway, facing north 

View of west driveway, facing north 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 25 

  

EXHIBIT 2-7 
PHOTOGRAPHS OF PROJECT SITE 

SOURCE: BLODGETT BAYLOSIS ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING  

View of portion of the project site that will be improved with 
the outdoor turf field, facing northeast 

View of future Indoor Training Studio #2, facing north 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 26 

●  Building Characteristics.  The two vacant buildings currently located on-site will be redeveloped 

to accommodate the indoor soccer training studios.  The building located on the center of the 

project site will be Indoor Training Studio #1 and will have a total floor area of 5,313 square feet.  

The building located on the northwestern portion of the project site will be Indoor Training 

Studio #2 and will have a total floor area of 4,011 square feet.  The two existing buildings will be 

used by Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy (B.E.S.A.) for training and field activities, office uses, 

and storage uses. 

●  Parking Characteristics.  Parking for the proposed use will be provided within on-site and off-site 

surface parking areas.  The on-site parking areas will be located on the south and east sides of 

Indoor Training Studio #1 and will include 27 standard stalls, ten compact stalls, and three ADA-

compliant stalls.  The off-site parking will be provided through a shared parking agreement with a 

neighboring property 850 feet to the west.  The off-site parking stalls will include 25 standard 

stalls that will be utilized when the other business is off-hours.  The on-site and off-site surface 

parking areas will include a total of 65 parking stalls.   

● Site Access.  Access to the proposed development will be provided by two existing driveways that 

will include a 21-foot-wide driveway and a second 17-foot-wide driveway.  Both driveways are 

located on the north side of Los Nietos Road.  Metal gates are currently located at the entrance 

and exit of the site and will remain upon project completion.   

● New Grading and Paving.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project involve the re-

grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation of an outdoor 

artificial turf field, and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  

The re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking will ensure that the site 

will be graded so that stormwater runoff will be directed to the curbs and gutters on Los Nietos 

Road.   

● Turf Area.  The outdoor turf field will be developed directly to the east of Indoor Training Studio 

#2.  The outdoor turf field will be 112 feet in length and 75 feet in width and will have a total land 

area of 8,400 square feet.  Located to the south of the outdoor turf field will be a standing area for 

spectators.   

● Landscaping.  A total of 3,725 square feet will be dedicated for landscaping and will include both 

existing and proposed landscaping.  The existing landscaping includes 1,946 square feet of land 

area along the Los Nietos Road frontage.  An additional 1,779 square feet of landscaping will be 

installed along the Los Nietos frontage and throughout the parking areas. 

The conceptual site plan is shown in Exhibit 2-8.   

  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 27 

 

  

E
X

H
IB

IT
 2

-8
 

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

: 
 R

. G
. D

E
S

IG
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 2 ● PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
PAGE 28 

2.5 PROJECT OBJECTIVES 

The City of Santa Fe Springs seeks to accomplish the following objectives with this review of the proposed 

project: 

● To minimize the environmental impacts associated with the proposed project;  

● To promote increased property valuation as a means to finance public services and improvements 

in the City; and, 

● To ensure that the proposed use is in conformance with the policies of the City of Santa Fe 

Springs General Plan. 

The project applicant is seeking to accomplish the following objectives with the proposed project: 

● To more efficiently utilize the site; and, 

● To realize a fair return on their investment. 

2.6 DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS 

A Discretionary Action is an action taken by a government agency (for this project, the government agency 

is the City of Santa Fe Springs) that calls for an exercise of judgment in deciding whether to approve a 

project.  The proposed project will require the following approvals: 

● Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 781 to allow the soccer facility use on property located at 13045 

Los Nietos Road within the M-2 Heavy Manufacturing Zone; 

● Modification Permit (MOD) 1283 to allow a reduction in the number of required on-site parking 

stalls from 65 spaces to 40 spaces (the applicant will have an agreement with the property owner 

of the property located 850 feet to the west to allow for 25 additional parking spaces for this use 

when the other business if off-hours); 

● Modification Permit (MOD) 1284 to allow a reduction in the required landscaping along the 

frontage of the property from 3,054 square feet to 2,560 square feet; and, 

● The adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the adoption of the Mitigation 

Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP).   



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 

 
PAGE 29 

SECTION 3 - ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 

This section of the Initial Study analyzes the potential environmental impacts that may result from the 

proposed project’s implementation.  The issue areas evaluated in this Initial Study include the following: 

Aesthetics (Section 3.1);  

Agricultural and Forestry Resources (Section 

3.2); 

Air Quality (Section 3.3); 

Biological Resources (Section 3.4); 

Cultural Resources (Section 3.5); 

Geology and Soils (Section 3.6);  

Greenhouse Gas Emissions; (Section 3.7); 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials (Section 

3.8);  

Hydrology and Water Quality (Section 3.9);  

Land Use and Planning (Section 3.10);  

Mineral Resources (Section 3.11);  

Noise (Section 3.12);  

Population and Housing (Section 3.13);  

Public Services (Section 3.14);  

Recreation (Section 3.15); 

Transportation and Circulation (Section 3.16);  

Tribal Cultural Resources (Section 3.17); 

Utilities (Section 3.18); and,  

Mandatory Findings of Significance (Section 

3.19). 
 

The environmental analysis included in this section reflects the Initial Study Checklist format used by the 

City of Santa Fe Springs in its environmental review process (refer to Section 1.3 herein).  Under each issue 

area, an analysis of impacts is provided in the form of questions and answers.  The analysis then provides a 

response to the individual questions.  For the evaluation of potential impacts, questions are stated and an 

answer is provided according to the analysis undertaken as part of this Initial Study's preparation.  To each 

question, there are four possible responses: 

● No Impact.  The proposed project will not have any measurable environmental impact on the 

environment. 

● Less Than Significant Impact.  The proposed project may have the potential for affecting the 

environment, although these impacts will be below levels or thresholds that the City of Santa Fe 

Springs or other responsible agencies consider to be significant.   

● Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation.  The proposed project may have the potential to 

generate impacts that will have a significant impact on the environment.  However, the level of 

impact may be reduced to levels that are less than significant with the implementation of 

mitigation measures. 

● Potentially Significant Impact.  The proposed project may result in environmental impacts that 

are significant. 

This Initial Study will assist the City in making a determination as to whether there is a potential for 

significant adverse impacts on the environment associated with the implementation of the proposed 

project.  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 30 

3.1 AESTHETICS 

3.1.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on aesthetics if it results in any of the following: 

● An adverse effect on a scenic vista; 

● Substantial damage to scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, 

and historic buildings within a state scenic highway; 

● A substantial degradation of the existing visual character or quality of the site and its 

surroundings; or, 

● A new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in 

the area. 

3.1.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A.  Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? No Impact. 

The project site is currently occupied by two industrial buildings and concrete- and asphalt-paved 

surfaces.  The proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the 

construction of new buildings.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project involve the re-

grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation an outdoor turf field, 

and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  The outdoor turf field will 

be located along the rear of the project site and will be not within the line-of-sight of any adjacent uses.  In 

addition, the outdoor turf field and all activity within the site will be located behind the wrought iron gates 

that are located at both on-site driveways.  Furthermore, the additional landscaping will enhance the 

visual character of the project site.  Therefore, the operation of the soccer facility will not negatively 

impact views of the Puente Hills (located approximately three miles northeast of the project site) and the 

West Coyote Hills (located approximately five miles southeast of the project site).10  Current development 

along Los Nietos Road restricts views of the aforementioned scenic vistas from uses on all sides of the 

project site.  As a result, the proposed project will not have an impact on a scenic vista. 

B. Would the project substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock 

outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? ● No Impact. 

The project site is currently occupied by two buildings and concrete- and asphalt-paved surfaces.  There 

are currently three trees located on-site along the Los Nietos Road frontage.  The proposed soccer facility 

will not involve the removal of the landscaping or trees that are currently in-place and therefore trees will 

not be damaged as a scenic resource.  In addition, the proposed project involves the installation of 

landscaping beyond that which currently exists.  There are neither rock outcroppings nor historic 

                                                 
10 Google Earth. Website accessed October 11, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 31 

buildings located on-site.11  According to the California Department of Transportation, Los Nietos Road is 

not a designated scenic highway and there are no State- or County-designated scenic highways in the 

vicinity of the project site.12  As a result, no impacts on scenic resources will result from the proposed 

project’s implementation. 

C. Would the project substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its 

surroundings? ● No Impact.   

As indicated previously, the project site is currently occupied by two buildings and concrete- and asphalt-

paved surfaces.  Landscaping is located along the Los Nietos Road frontage.  The proposed project 

involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the construction of new buildings.  On-site 

improvements proposed as part of the project involve the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths 

of travel and parking, the installation an outdoor turf field, and the installation of additional landscaping 

beyond that which already exists.  The outdoor turf field will be located along the rear of the project site 

and will be not within the line-of-sight of any adjacent uses.  In addition, the outdoor turf field will be 

located behind the wrought iron gates that are located at both on-site driveways.  Furthermore, the 

additional landscaping will enhance the visual character of the project site.  As a result, no adverse 

impacts will result upon implementation of the proposed project. 

D. Would the project create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day 

or nighttime views in the area? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

The proposed project will involve the installation of limited interior and exterior improvements.  Four 

new downward-facing lighting fixtures (24 feet in height) will be installed along the perimeter of the new 

outdoor turf field.  Exterior lighting can be a nuisance to adjacent land uses that are sensitive to this 

lighting.  This nuisance lighting is referred to as light trespass and is typically defined as the presence of 

unwanted light on properties located adjacent to the source of lighting.  The project site is located in the 

midst of an industrial area and there are no light sensitive receptors located in the immediate vicinity of 

the project site that would be affected by the introduction of additional sources of light.  Richard L. Graves 

Middle School is located approximately 500 feet east of the project site and a single-family residential 

neighborhood is located approximately 650 feet north of the project site.13  These sensitive receptors are 

not in the line-of-sight of the project site because the line-of-sight is obstructed by existing buildings.  

Furthermore, the new light fixtures will be downward-facing so as to not affect any sensitive receptors in 

the area.  Richard L. Graves Middle School will not be affected by the new sources of light because school 

will not be in session during the evening hours when the light fixtures will be illuminated.  Therefore, the 

previously mentioned sensitive receptors will be minimally impacted by the presence of light.  As a result, 

less than significant impacts will result upon the implementation of the proposed project.   

 

                                                 
11 Blodgett Baylosis Environmental Planning.  Site Survey.  Survey was completed on October 11, 2017.  Secondary source: California 

State Parks, Office of Historic Preservation.  Listed California Historical Resources.  Website accessed October 11, 2017. 
 
12 California Department of Transportation.  Official Designated Scenic Highways.  

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/16_livability/scenic_highways/index.htm.  
 
13 Blodgett Baylosis Environmental Planning.  Site Survey.  Survey was completed on October 11, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 32 

3.1.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The potential aesthetic impacts related to views, aesthetics, and light and glare are site-specific.  As 

indicated in the previous sections, the proposed project will not restrict scenic views along Los Nietos 

Road, damage or interfere with any scenic resources or highways, degrade the visual character of the 

project site and surrounding areas, or result in significant light and glare impacts; therefore, no 

cumulative impacts will occur as part of the proposed project’s implementation.   

3.1.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis determined that no significant impacts related to aesthetics and views are anticipated upon 

the implementation of the proposed project, therefore no mitigation measures are required.  

3.2 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES  

3.2.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on agriculture and forestry resources if it results in any of the following: 

● The conversion of Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance to 

non-agricultural use; 

● A conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act Contract;  

● A conflict with existing zoning for, or the rezoning of, forest land, timberland, or timberland 

zoned production; 

● The loss of forest land or the conversion of forest land to non-forest use; or, 

● Changes to the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in 

conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use. 

3.2.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide 

Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 

Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? ● No Impact. 

According to the California Department of Conservation, the City of Santa Fe Springs does not contain 

any areas of Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance.  A Light 

Agriculture zone (A-1) exists within the City’s zoning code and the proposed project site’s M-2 zoning 

designation permits agricultural uses, excluding dairies, stockyards, slaughter of animals, and 

manufacture of fertilizer.  However, the City’s General Plan does not identify any agricultural uses within 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 33 

City boundaries.14  The proposed project will not require a zone change and no loss of land zoned for/or 

permitting agricultural uses will occur.  As a result, no impacts on Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 

Farmland of Statewide Importance will occur with the implementation of the proposed project.  

B. Would the project conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act Contract? ● 

No Impact. 

According to the California Department of Conservation Division of Land Resource Protection, the project 

site is not subject to a Williamson Act Contract.15  Additionally, the project site is currently zoned as M-2 

(Heavy Manufacturing) and no agricultural activities are located on-site.  As indicated in Section 3.2.2.A, 

agricultural uses are permitted within the M-2 zone but are not exclusive to the M-2 zoning designation; 

therefore, no conflict in zoning for agricultural uses will occur.  As a result, no impacts will occur from the 

proposed project’s implementation. 

C. Would the project conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in 

Public Resources Code §12220[g]), timberland (as defined in Public Resources Code §4526), or 

timberland zoned production (as defined in Government Code §51104[g])? ● No Impact. 

The City of Santa Fe Springs and the project site are located in the midst of a larger urban area and no 

forest lands are located within the City.  The City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan and the Santa Fe 

Springs Zoning Ordinance do not provide for any forest land preservation.16  As a result, no impacts on 

forest land or timber resources will result from the proposed project’s implementation.  

D. Would the project result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? ● No 

Impact. 

As indicated previously in Section 3.2.2.C, no forest lands are located within the vicinity of the project site 

or the City of Santa Fe Springs.  As a result, no loss or conversion of forest lands will result from the 

proposed project’s implementation. 

E. Would the project involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or 

nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land 

to non-forest use? ● No Impact. 

The proposed project will occupy a site which is currently developed and within a larger industrial area.  

Therefore, the proposed project’s implementation will not result in the conversion of any existing 

farmlands or forest lands to urban uses.  As a result, no impacts will result from the implementation of the 

proposed project. 

 

                                                 
14 City of Santa Fe Springs Municipal Code.  Title XV, Land Usage.  Chapter 155, Code 155.241, Principal Permitted Uses. 
 
15 California Department of Conservation. State of California Williamson Act Contract Land.  

ftp://ftp.consrv.ca.gov/pub/dlrp/WA/2012%20Statewide%20Map/WA_2012_8x11.pdf. 
 
16 City of Santa Fe Springs Municipal Code.  Title XV, Land Usage.  Chapter 155, Code 155.211 Principal Permitted Uses. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 34 

3.2.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis determined that there are no agricultural or forestry resources in the project area and that 

the implementation of the proposed project would not result in any impacts on these resources.  As a 

result, no cumulative impacts on agriculture or forestry resources will occur.   

3.2.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of agricultural and forestry resources indicated that no impacts on these resources would 

occur as part of the proposed project’s implementation and no mitigation is required.   

3.3 AIR QUALITY 

3.3.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on air quality if it results in any of the following: 

● A conflict with, or the obstruction of, the implementation of the applicable air quality plan; 

● A violation of any air quality standard or a substantial contribution to an existing or projected air 

quality violation; 

● A cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is 

non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard;  

● The exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations; or, 

● The creation of objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people. 

The South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) has established quantitative thresholds for 

short-term (construction) emissions and long-term (operational) emissions for the following criteria 

pollutants:   

● Ozone (O3) is a nearly colorless gas that irritates the lungs, damages materials, and vegetation.  

Ozone is formed by photochemical reaction (when nitrogen dioxide is broken down by sunlight).   

● Carbon monoxide (CO) is a colorless, odorless toxic gas that interferes with the transfer of oxygen 

to the brain.  Carbon monoxide is produced by the incomplete combustion of carbon-containing 

fuels emitted as vehicle exhaust.  

● Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) is a yellowish-brown gas, which at high levels can cause breathing 

difficulties.  Nitrogen dioxide is formed when nitric oxide (a pollutant from burning processes) 

combines with oxygen.   



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 35 

● Sulfur dioxide (SO2) is a colorless, pungent gas formed primarily by the combustion of sulfur-

containing fossil fuels.  Health effects include acute respiratory symptoms and difficulty in 

breathing for children.   

● PM10 and PM2.5 refers to particulate matter less than ten microns and two and one-half microns in 

diameter, respectively.  Particulates of this size cause a greater health risk than larger-sized 

particles because fine particles can more easily cause irritation. 

Projects in the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB) generating construction-related emissions that exceed any of 

the following emissions thresholds are considered to be significant under CEQA: 

● 75 pounds per day or 2.50 tons per quarter of reactive organic compounds; 

● 100 pounds per day or 2.50 tons per quarter of nitrogen dioxide; 

● 550 pounds per day or 24.75 tons per quarter of carbon monoxide; 

● 150 pounds per day or 6.75 tons per quarter of PM10; 

● 55 pounds per day or 2.43 tons per quarter of PM2.5; or, 

● 150 pounds per day or 6.75 tons per quarter of sulfur oxides. 

A project would have a significant effect on air quality if any of the following operational emissions 

thresholds for criteria pollutants are exceeded: 

● 55 pounds per day of reactive organic compounds; 

● 55 pounds per day of nitrogen dioxide; 

● 550 pounds per day of carbon monoxide; 

● 150 pounds per day of PM10; 

● 55 pounds per day of PM2.5; or, 

● 150 pounds per day of sulfur oxides. 

3.3.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project conflict with, or obstruct implementation of, the applicable air quality plan? ● No 

Impact. 

The project site is located within the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB), which covers a 6,600 square-mile 

area within all of Orange County, the non-desert portions of Los Angeles County, Riverside County, and 

San Bernardino County.  Measures to improve regional air quality are outlined in the SCAQMD’s Air 

Quality Management Plan (AQMP).  The most recent AQMP was adopted in 2016 and was jointly 

prepared with the California Air Resources Board (CARB) and the Southern California Association of 

Governments (SCAG).17  The AQMP will help the SCAQMD maintain focus on the air quality impacts of 

major projects associated with goods movement, land use, energy efficiency, and other key areas of 

growth.  Key elements of the 2016 AQMP include enhancements to existing programs to meet the 24-hour 

PM2.5 Federal health standard and a proposed plan of action to reduce ground-level Ozone.  The primary 

criteria pollutants that remain non-attainment in the local area include PM2.5 and Ozone.  Specific criteria 

for determining a project’s conformity with the AQMP is defined in Section 12.3 of the SCAQMD’s CEQA 

                                                 
17 South Coast Air Quality Management District.  Final 2016 Air Quality Management Plan.  Adopted March 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 36 

Air Quality Handbook.  The Air Quality Handbook refers to the following criteria as a means to determine 

a project’s conformity with the AQMP:18   

● Consistency Criteria 1 refers to a proposed project’s potential for resulting in an increase in the 

frequency or severity of an existing air quality violation or its potential for contributing to the 

continuation of an existing air quality violation.   

● Consistency Criteria 2 refers to a proposed project’s potential for exceeding the assumptions 

included in the AQMP or other regional growth projections relevant to the AQMP’s 

implementation.   

In terms of Criteria 1, the proposed project’s long-term (operational) airborne emissions will be below 

levels that the SCAQMD considers to be a significant adverse impact (refer to the analysis included in the 

next section where the long-term stationary and mobile emissions for the proposed project are 

summarized in Tables 3-1 and 3-2).  The proposed project will also conform to Consistency Criteria 2 

since it will not significantly affect any regional population, housing, and employment projections 

prepared for the City of Santa Fe Springs.  Projects that are consistent with the projections of employment 

and population forecasts identified in the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities 

Strategy (RTP/SCS) prepared by SCAG are considered consistent with the AQMP growth projections, 

since the RTP/SCS forms the basis of the land use and transportation control portions of the AQMP.   

According to the Growth Forecast Appendix prepared by SCAG for the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS, the City of 

Santa Fe Springs is projected to add a total of 7,400 new jobs through the year 2040.19  According to the 

State of California Employment Development Department, the City’s current unemployment rate is 5.8 

percent, which means there are up to 500 residents actively seeking work.20  According to the applicant, a 

total of four new jobs will be created upon the implementation of the proposed project.  The projected 

number of new jobs is well within SCAG’s employment projections for the City of Santa Fe Springs and 

the proposed project will not violate Consistency Criteria 2.  As a result, no impacts related to the 

implementation of the AQMP are anticipated. 

B. Would the project violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or 

projected air quality violation● Less Than Significant Impact. 

The project site’s improvement period is expected to last approximately six weeks and would include the 

indoor improvements to the two existing buildings, the removal of existing paving, site preparation, 

grading, the installation of the outdoor turf field and landscaping, and the paving of the site.  The analysis 

of daily construction (site improvement) and operational emissions was prepared utilizing the California 

Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod Version 2016.3.1).  As shown in Table 3-1, daily construction (site 

improvement) emissions are not anticipated to exceed the SCAQMD significance thresholds.   

                                                 
18 South Coast Air Quality Management District.  CEQA Air Quality Handbook.  April 1993. 
 
19 Southern California Association of Governments.  Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy 2016-2040.  

Demographics & Growth Forecast.  April 2016. 
 
20 State of California Employment Development Department. Current Month Unemployment Rate and Labor Force Summary.  

http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/data/unemployment-and-labor-force.html.  Website accessed November 1, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 37 

Table 3-1 
Estimated Daily Construction (Site Improvement) Emissions 

Construction Phase ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10 PM2.5 

Demolition (on-site) 1.06 9.43 7.78 0.01 0.62 0.59 

Demolition (off-site) 0.05 0.04 0.50 -- 0.11 0.03 

Total Demolition Phase 1.11 9.47 8.28 0.01 0.73 0.62 

Site Preparation (on-site) 0.79 9.76 4.25 -- 0.52 0.40 

Site Preparation (off-site) 0.03 0.02 0.25 -- 0.06 0.02 

Total Site Preparation 0.82 9.78 4.50 -- 0.58 0.42 

Grading (on-site) 1.06 9.43 7.78 0.01 1.38 1.01 

Grading (off-site) 0.05 0.04 0.50 -- 0.11 0.03 

Total Grading 1.11 9.47 8.28 0.01 1.49 1.04 

Paving (on-site) 0.92 8.74 7.22 0.01 0.51 0.47 

Paving (off-site) 0.10 0.07 0.90 -- 0.20 0.05 

Total Paving 1.02 8.81 8.12 0.01 0.71 0.52 

Maximum Daily Emissions 1.11 9.78 8.28 0.01 1.49 1.04 

Daily Thresholds 75 100 55o 150 150 55 

Source: CalEEMod Version 2016.3.1. 

The estimated daily construction (site improvement) emissions (shown in Table 3-1) assume compliance 

with applicable SCAQMD rules and regulations for the control of fugitive dust.  Long-term emissions refer 

to those air quality impacts that will occur once the proposed project has been constructed and is 

operational.  These impacts will continue over the operational life of the project.  The long-term air quality 

impacts associated with the proposed project include mobile emissions associated with vehicular traffic.  

The analysis of long-term operational impacts also used the CalEEMod Version 2016.3.1 computer model.  

Table 3-2 depicts the estimated operational emissions generated by the proposed project.  

Table 3-2 
Estimated Operational Emissions in lbs/day 

Emission Source ROG NO2 CO SO2 PM10 PM2.5 

Area-wide (lbs/day) 0.02 -- -- -- -- -- 

Energy (lbs/day) -- 0.04 0.04 -- -- -- 

Mobile (lbs/day) 0.55 2.51 6.02 0.02 1.37 0.38 

Total (lbs/day) 0.76 2.56 6.06 0.02 1.37 0.38 

Daily Thresholds 55 55 55o 15o 15o 55 

Source: CalEEMod Version 2016.3.1. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 38 

As indicated in Table 3-2, the projected long-term emissions are below thresholds considered to represent 

a significant adverse impact.  Since the project area is located in a non-attainment area for Ozone and 

particulates, the applicant will be required to ensure that the grading and building contractors adhere to 

all pertinent provisions of SCAQMD Rule 403 pertaining to the generation of fugitive dust during grading 

and/or the use of equipment on unpaved surfaces.21  The contractors will be responsible for being familiar 

with, and implementing any pertinent best available control technology (BACT) measures.  Therefore, less 

than significant impacts will occur. 

C. Would the project result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for 

which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality 

standard (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 

precursors)? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

The potential long-term (operational) and short-term (construction) emissions associated with the 

proposed project are compared to the SCAQMD's daily emissions thresholds in Tables 3-1 and 3-2, 

respectively.  As indicated in these tables, the short-term and long-term emissions will not exceed the 

SCAQMD's daily thresholds.  The SCAB is non-attainment for Ozone and particulates.  The proposed 

project’s implementation will result in minimal construction-related emissions (refer to the discussion 

provided in the previous section).  Operational emissions will be limited to vehicular traffic traveling to 

and from the proposed project.   

Finally, the proposed project would not exceed the adopted projections used in the preparation of the 

Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (refer to the discussion included in 

Section 3.3.2.A).  As a result, the potential air quality impacts related to the generation of criteria 

pollutants are less than significant.   

D. Would the project expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? ● Less Than 

Significant Impact. 

Sensitive receptors refer to land uses and/or activities that are especially sensitive to poor air quality and 

typically include homes, schools, playgrounds, hospitals, convalescent homes, and other facilities where 

children or the elderly may congregate.22  Sensitive receptors near the project site include Richard L. 

Graves Middle School (located approximately 500 feet east of the project site) and a single-family 

residential neighborhood (located approximately 650 feet north of the project site).23  The locations of the 

aforementioned sensitive receptors are shown in Exhibit 3-1.  The SCAQMD requires that CEQA air 

quality analyses indicate whether a proposed project will result in an exceedance of localized emissions 

thresholds or LSTs.  LSTs only apply to short-term (construction) and long-term (operational) emissions 

at a fixed location and do not include off-site or area-wide emissions. 

 

                                                 
21 South Coast Air Quality Management District.  Rule 403, Fugitive Dust.  As Amended June 3, 2005. 
 
22 South Coast Air Quality Management District.  CEQA Air Quality Handbook, Appendix 9.  as amended 2004. 
 
23 Blodgett Baylosis Environmental Planning.  Site Survey.  Survey was completed on October 11, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 39 

 

EXHIBIT 3-1 
SENSITIVE RECEPTORS MAP 

SOURCE: QUANTUM GIS 

Non-Sensitive 
Receptors 

Sensitive Receptors 

Project Site 

Richard L. 
Graves Middle 

School 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 40 

The approach used in the analysis of the proposed project utilized a number of screening tables that 

identified maximum allowable emissions (in pounds per day) at a specified distance to a receptor.  The 

pollutants that are the focus of the LST analysis include the conversion of NOx to NO2; carbon monoxide 

(CO) emissions from construction and operations; PM10 emissions from construction and operations; and 

PM2.5 emissions from construction and operations.   The use of the “look-up tables” is permitted since 

each of the construction (site improvement) phases will involve the disturbance of less than five acres of 

land area.  As indicated in Table 3-3, the proposed project will not exceed any LSTs based on the 

information included in the Mass Rate LST Look-up Tables provided by the SCAQMD.  For purposes of 

the LST analysis, the receptor distance used was 200 meters, since the nearest sensitive receptor (the 

residential neighborhood) is located 152.4 meters (500 feet) east of the project site.  As indicated in the 

table, the proposed project will not exceed any LSTs based on the information included in the Mass Rate 

LST Look-up Tables. 

Table 3-3 
Local Significance Thresholds Exceedance SRA 5 

Emissions 
Project Emissions 

(lbs/day) 
Type 

Allowable Emissions Threshold (lbs/day) and a 
Specified Distance from Receptor (in meters) 

25 5o 100 200 500 

NOx 9.78 Construction 172 165 176 194 244 

NOx 2.56 Operations 172 165 176 194 244 

CO 8.28 Construction 1,480 1,855 2,437 3,897 9,312 

CO 6.06 Operations 1,480 1,855 2,437 3,897 9,312 

PM10 1.49 Construction 7 21 39 74 182 

PM10 1.37 Operations 4 10 16 23 49 

PM2.5 1.04 Construction 7 10 18 39 120 

PM2.5 0.38 Operations 2 3 4 8 25 

Source: CalEEMod Version 2016.3.1. 

Most vehicles generate carbon monoxide (CO) as part of the tail-pipe emissions, therefore, high 

concentrations of CO along busy roadways and congested intersections are a concern.  The areas 

surrounding the most congested intersections are often found to contain high levels of CO that exceed 

applicable standards.  These areas of high CO concentration are referred to as hot spots.  Two variables 

influence the creation of a hot-spot and these variables include traffic volumes and traffic congestion.  

Typically, a hot-spot may occur near an intersection that is experiencing severe congestion (a LOS E or 

LOS F).24  The SCAQMD stated in its CEQA Handbook that a CO hotspot would not likely develop at an 

intersection operating at LOS C or better.  Since the Handbook was written, there have been new CO 

emissions controls added to vehicles and reformulated fuels are now sold in the SCAB.  These new 

automobile emissions controls, along with the reformulated fuels, have resulted in a lowering of both 

ambient CO concentrations and vehicle emissions.   

 

                                                 
24 “LOS” refers to “Level of Service.”  Refer to Section 3.16.2.A. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 41 

Due to the soccer facility operation schedule, the maximum traffic generation will occur around 6:30 PM 

when the participants of the first training session will depart and the participants of the second training 

session will arrive.  Therefore, with two persons per vehicle, there will be 30 vehicles arriving and 30 

vehicles departing under the worst-case scenario during this peak hour (refer to Section 3.16.2.A).  Based 

on the analysis conducted by Crown City Engineers, it can be concluded that the proposed development 

will not significantly degrade any local intersection’s level of service (LOS E or F).25  In addition, project-

generated traffic will not result in the creation of a carbon monoxide hot spot.  The soccer facility will be 

used by both adults and children soccer players.  The facility will feature three soccer fields, two of which 

will be indoors.  The field that will be used for youth training will be indoors.  As previously mentioned, 

the project site is surrounded by industrial uses.  The first session for training will start at 5:00 PM and 

will end at 6:30 PM.  The second session will start immediately after the first session and so forth.  Due to 

the operation schedule, the youth that will train at the facility will be minimally affected by the air quality 

in the area because the majority of industrial uses in the area function during regular business hours 

(9:00 AM to 5:00 PM).  As a result, less than significant impacts on sensitive receptors are anticipated. 

E. Would the project create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people? ● No Impact. 

The SCAQMD has identified those land uses that are typically associated with odor complaints.  These 

uses include activities involving livestock, rendering facilities, food processing plants, chemical plants, 

composting activities, refineries, landfills, and businesses involved in fiberglass molding.26  The proposed 

project will function as a soccer facility use.  As designed, the proposed project will not be involved in any 

of the aforementioned odor-generating activities.  Given the nature of the proposed use, no impacts 

related to odors will result with the proposed project.  In addition, the project site is not located in the 

vicinity of any odor-generating use.  As a result, no impacts will occur. 

3.3.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The proposed project’s short-term construction (site improvement) emissions will be well below 

thresholds that are considered to represent a significant adverse impact.  The operational emissions will 

not significantly change from the existing levels since the proposed project will not lead to the generation 

of any airborne emissions.   

3.3.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis indicated that no significant impacts on air quality would occur as part of the proposed 

project’s implementation and no mitigation is required.   

 

 

 
                                                 
25 Crown City Engineers.  Traffic Letter Report, Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy, 13045 Los Nietos Road, Santa Fe Springs, CA.  

August 31, 2017. 
 
26 South Coast Air Quality Management District.  CEQA Air Quality Handbook.  April 1993. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 42 

3.4 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

3.4.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on biological resources if it results in any of the following:  

● A substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species 

identified as a candidate, sensitive or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or 

regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 

Service;  

● A substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community 

identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish 

and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service;  

● A substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean 

Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, 

filling, hydrological interruption, or other means; 

● A substantial interference with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 

species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or the impedance of the 

use of native wildlife nursery sites; 

● A conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree 

preservation policy or ordinance; or, 

● A conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 

Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan. 

3.4.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, 

on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional 

plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service? ● No Impact. 

The project site is currently paved over in concrete and asphalt and is occupied by two buildings.  Due to 

the level of development on-site and in the surrounding area, the project site is not a suitable environment 

for any candidate, sensitive, or special status species.  There are no local or regional plans, policies, or 

regulations that identify candidate, sensitive or special status species except those identified by the 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife.  A review of the California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

California Natural Biodiversity Database (CNDDB) Bios Viewer for the Whittier Quadrangle indicated 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 43 

that there are six threatened or endangered species located within the Whittier Quadrangle (the City of 

Santa Fe Springs is listed within the Whittier Quadrangle).27  These species include:   

● The coastal California Gnatcatcher is not likely to be found on-site due to the existing 

development and the lack of habitat suitable for the California Gnatcatcher.  The absence of 

coastal sage scrub, the coastal California Gnatcatcher’s primary habitat, further diminishes the 

likelihood of encountering such birds.28   

● The Least Bell’s Vireo lives in a riparian habitat, with a majority of the species living in San Diego 

County.  As a result, it is not likely that any Least Bell’s Vireos will be encountered in the project 

area due to the lack of riparian habitat in the surrounding area.29   

● The Santa Ana Sucker will not be found on-site because the Santa Ana Sucker is a fish and there 

are no bodies of water present on-site.30  The nearest body of water is the Coyote Creek Channel, 

located approximately 0.31 miles northeast of the project site. 

● The Bank Swallow lives in a riparian habitat and nests along rivers or streams.  The nearest 

stream or body of water is the Coyote Creek Channel, located approximately 0.31 miles northeast 

of the project site; therefore, it is not likely that the Bank Swallow will be found on the project site.  

Additionally, the current level of development is not an ideal environment for the Bank Swallow.31   

● The Western Yellow-Billed Cuckoo is an insect-eating bird found in riparian woodland habitats.  

The likelihood of encountering a Western Yellow-Billed Cuckoo is slim due to the level of 

development present within the City of Santa Fe Springs.  Furthermore, the lack of riparian 

habitat further diminishes the likelihood of encountering populations of Western Yellow-Billed 

Cuckoos.32   

● California Orcutt Grass is found near vernal pools throughout Los Angeles, Riverside, and San 

Diego Counties.33  As indicated previously, the project site is located in the midst of an urban area.  

There are no bodies of water located on-site that would be capable of supporting populations of 

California Orcutt Grass nor does the site have the capacity to form vernal pools during wet 

seasons.   

                                                 
27 California Department of Fish and Wildlife.  Bios Viewer.  https://map.dfg.ca.gov/bios/?tool=cnddbQuick.  Website accessed 

October 13, 2017. 
 
28 Audubon.  California Gnatcatcher (Polioptila californica).  https://www.audubon.org/field-guide/bird/california-gnatcatcher.  
 
29 California Partners in Flight Riparian Bird Conservation Plan.  Least Bell’s Vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus).  

http://www.prbo.org/calpif/htmldocs/species/riparian/least_bell_vireo.htm. 
 
30 Blodgett Baylosis Environmental Planning.  Site Survey.  Survey was completed on October 11, 2017. 
 
31 Audubon.  Bank Swallow (Riparia riparia).   https://www.audubon.org/guia-de-aves/ave/bank-swallow. 

http://www.prbo.org/calpif/htmldocs/species/riparian/bank_swallow_acct2.html. 
 
32 US Fish and Wildlife Service.  Sacramento Fish and Wildlife Office, Public Advisory.  

http://www.fws.gov/sacramento/outreach/Public-Advisories/WesternYellow-BilledCuckoo/outreach_PA_Western-Yellow-
Billed-Cuckoo.htm. 

 
33 County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works.  Listed Species in the County of Los Angeles.  

http://dpw.lacounty.gov/pdd/bikepath/bikeplan/docs/App_C_Bio.pdf. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 44 

The proposed project will have no impact on the aforementioned species because the project site is located 

in an urban area devoid of any suitable habitat for the aforementioned species.  The project site and 

surrounding areas are not conducive to the survival of the aforementioned species due to the lack of 

suitable habitat.  As a result, no impacts on any candidate, sensitive, or special status species will result 

from proposed project’s implementation. 

B. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive 

natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California 

Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? ● No Impact. 

The project site is currently paved over in concrete and asphalt and is occupied by two buildings.  Due to 

the level of development on-site and in the surrounding area, the project site does not offer a suitable 

habitat for any species.  There are no local or regional plans, policies, or regulations that identify any 

riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, nor does the California Department of Fish and 

Wildlife identify any such habitat.  During a site survey that was completed on October 11, 2017, no 

wetlands were observed on the project site or in the surrounding areas.34  A review of the U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service National Wetlands Inventory, Wetlands Mapper confirmed that there are no wetlands or 

riparian habitats present on-site or in the adjacent properties.35  The nearest wetlands to the project site 

are the Coyote Creek Channel, which is located 0.31 miles northeast of the project site and is channelized 

with concrete (refer to Exhibit 3-2).  The proposed project will be limited to the project site and will not 

affect the Coyote Creek Channel.  As a result, no impacts on natural or riparian habitats will result from 

the proposed project’s implementation. 

C. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by 

Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 

through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? ● No Impact.  

As previously mentioned in Section 3.4.2.B, the project site is currently developed with two buildings and 

paved surfaces and does not contain any natural wetland and/or riparian habitat (refer to Exhibit 3-2).  

The vegetation currently on-site consists of species that are typically not found in a wetland environment.  

The project area is located in the midst of an industrial setting and a result, the proposed project will not 

impact any protected wetland area. 

D. Would the project interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory 

fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory life corridors, or impede the 

use of native wildlife nursery sites? ● No Impact. 

The project site has no utility as a wildlife migration corridor because the site is located in the midst of an 

urban area.  According to the Los Angeles County Department of Regional Planning, a wildlife corridor 

may be defined as:  

 

                                                 
34 Blodgett Baylosis Environmental Planning.  Site Survey.  Survey was completed on October 11, 2017. 
 
35 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, National Wetlands Inventory.  Wetlands Mapper.  Website accessed October 13, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 45 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 3-2 
WETLANDS MAP 

SOURCE: U.S. FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE, WETLANDS MAPPER 
 

Project Site 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 46 

“Areas of open space of sufficient width to permit larger, more mobile species (such as 

foxes, bobcats and coyote) to pass between larger areas of open space, or to disperse 

from one major open space region to another are referred to as “wildlife corridors.” 

Such areas generally are several hundred feet wide, unobstructed, and usually possess 

cover, food and water.”36 

The project site and surrounding areas have been previously disturbed to accommodate the current level 

of development and retain little to none of the characteristics of the native environment.  The site is 

currently occupied by industrial uses and is not located near a body of water.  In addition, the site abuts a 

highly traveled roadway (Los Nietos Road) and is exposed to noise generated from vehicular traffic.   

The project site and surrounding areas have been previously disturbed to accommodate the current level 

of development and retain little to none of the characteristics of the native environment.  The site is 

currently occupied by two buildings and is not located near a body of water.  In addition, the site abuts a 

highly traveled roadway (Los Nietos Road) and is exposed to noise generated from vehicular traffic.  The 

aforementioned conditions restrict the site’s utility as a migration corridor because the site lacks the 

adequate components needed to create a suitable habitat.  In addition, the project site does not connect 

two major open spaces, as there are none present in the vicinity.  As a result, no impacts are anticipated.   

E. Would the project conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such 

as a tree preservation policy or ordinance? ● No Impact. 

Title IX (General Regulations) Chapter 96 Codes 130-140 of the City of Santa Fe Springs municipal code 

serves as the City’s “Tree Ordinance.”37  The tree ordinance establishes strict guidelines regarding the 

removal or tampering of trees located within any public right-of-way (such as streets and alleys).  There 

are currently three trees located on-site along the Los Nietos Road frontage.  The proposed soccer facility 

will not involve the removal of the landscaping or trees that are currently in-place and therefore the 

proposed project will not violate the City’s tree ordinance.  In addition, the proposed project involves the 

installation of landscaping beyond that which is already in place.  As a result, no impacts will occur.   

F. Would the project conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 

Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation 

plan? ● No Impact.   

The proposed project will not impact an adopted or approved local, regional, or State habitat conservation 

plan because the proposed project is located in the midst of an urban area.  In addition, the Puente Hills 

Significant Ecological Area (SEA #15) is the closest protected SEA and is located approximately 2.70 miles 

northeast from the project site.38  The operation of the proposed soccer facility will not affect the Puente 

Hills SEA because the proposed development will be restricted to the project site.  Therefore, no impacts 

will occur.   

                                                 
36 Los Angeles County Department of Regional Planning.  Significant Ecological Areas.  

http://planning.lacounty.gov/sea/local_and_site_specific_habitat_linkages_and_wildlife_corridors. 
 
37 Santa Fe Springs, City of, Municipal Code.  Title IX General Regulations, Chapter 96 Streets and Sidewalks, Street Trees. 
 
38 County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning.  Significant Ecological Areas and Coastal Resource Areas Policy Map.  

February 2015. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 47 

3.4.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The proposed project will not involve any an incremental loss or degradation of protected habitat.  The 

analysis determined that the proposed project will not result in any impacts on protected plant and 

animal species.  As a result, no cumulative impacts on biological resources will be associated with the 

proposed project’s implementation.   

3.4.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis indicated that the proposed project would not result in any impacts on biological resources.  

As a result, no mitigation measures are required.   

3.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES  

3.5.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on cultural resources if it results in any of the following: 

● A substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in §15064.5 of 

the CEQA Guidelines; 

● A substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to 

§15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines;  

● The destruction of a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature; or,    

● The disturbance of any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries. 

3.5.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as 

defined in §15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines? ● No Impact. 

Two locations in the City are recorded on the National Register of Historic Places and the list of California 

Historical Resources: the Clarke Estate and the Hawkins-Nimocks Estate (also known as the Patricio 

Ontiveros Adobe or Ontiveros Adobe).39  The Clarke Estate is located at 10211 Pioneer Boulevard and the 

Ontiveros Adobe is located at 12100 Telegraph Road.  Other structures and sites of historic significance 

within the City of Santa Fe Springs are outlined in Table 3-4.  The sites and structures listed in Table 3-4 

are not located within or adjacent to the project site.   

 

                                                 
39 U. S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service.  National Register of Historic Places.  http://focus.nps.gov/nrhp.  

Secondary Source: California State Parks, Office of Historic Preservation.  Listed California Historical Resources.  Website 
accessed October 13, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 48 

Table 3-4 
Historic Resources in Santa Fe Springs 

Resource Name Location Description 

Clarke Estate  10211 Pioneer Boulevard 
Site is on the National Register of Historic Places and the 
list of California Historical Resources. 

Hawkins-Nimocks Estate 
(Ontiveros Adobe) 

12100 Telegraph Road 
Site is on the National Register of Historic Places and the 
list of California Historical Resources. 

Hathaway Home 11901 E. Florence Avenue 

The Hathaway Ranch Museum is a registered 501(c)(3) 
non-profit corporation dedicated to preserving and 
presenting the eras of farming, ranching, and oil 
development in early Fulton Wells/Santa Fe Springs.  The 
centerpiece of the museum is the ranch house that was 
constructed in 1933. 

German Baptist Church 
Cemetery 

Corner of Los Nietos Road and 
Painter Avenue 

Just before the turn of the century, a colony of German 
Baptists known as Dunkers settled in the area to farm.  In 
1972, the Dunkers moved to Modesto, leaving behind their 
church and the neighboring graveyard. 

Santa Fe Springs Hotel   
2 blocks north of Telegraph Rd. 
and 2 blocks east Norwalk Blvd. 

Site of 1880’s hotel. 

Four Corners (Fulton Wells) Norwalk Blvd. and Telegraph Rd. A Banning Stage Coach stop was located here. 

Source: Los Angeles County Historical Directory.  Janet I. Atkinson. 

Currently, the project site is occupied by two industrial structures and does not meet, or contain any 

structures that meet, any historical preservation criteria.  In addition, the project site is not listed on the 

National or State Historic Register.40  The proposed project will be limited to the project site and will not 

affect any existing resources listed on the National or State Register or those identified as being eligible 

for listing on the National or State Register.  As a result, no impacts are associated with the proposed 

project’s implementation. 

B. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological 

resource pursuant to §15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines? ● Less Than Significant Impact.   

The greater Los Angeles Basin was previously inhabited by the Gabrieleño people, named after the San 

Gabriel Mission.  The Gabrieleño tribe has lived in this region for around 7,000 years.41  Prior to Spanish 

contact, approximately 5,000 Gabrieleño people lived in villages throughout the Los Angeles Basin.42  

Villages were typically located near major rivers such as the San Gabriel, Rio Hondo, or Los Angeles 

Rivers.  Two village sites were located in the Los Nietos area: Naxaaw’na and Sehat.  The sites of 

Naxaaw’na and Sehat are thought to be near the adobe home of Jose Manuel Nietos that was located near 

the San Gabriel River.43  Consultation was obtained in accordance with AB-52, which requires Native 

American consultation within CEQA documents.  The project site is located within the boundaries of land 

pertaining to the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians, Kizh Nation.  Tribal consultation determined that 

                                                 
40 U. S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service.  National Register of Historic Places.  http://focus.nps.gov/nrhp.  

Secondary Source: California State Parks, Office of Historic Preservation.  Listed California Historical Resources.  Website 
accessed October 13, 2017. 

 
41 Tongva People of Sunland-Tujunga.  Introduction.  http://www.lausd.k12.ca.us/Verdugo_HS/classes/multimedia/intro.html. 
 
42 Rancho Santa Ana Botanical Garden.  Tongva Village Site.  http://www.rsabg.org/component/k2/item/453-tongva-village-site. 
 
43 McCawley, William.  The First Angelinos, The Gabrielino Indians of Los Angeles.  1996. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 49 

the proposed project does not require mitigation due to the limited extent of ground disturbance that will 

be involved with the re-grading and re-paving of the site.  Furthermore, the project area has been subject 

to disturbance to accommodate the existing buildings.  Notwithstanding, in the event of an accidental 

discovery, Title 14; Chapter 3; Article 5; Section 15064.5 of CEQA will apply in terms of the identification 

of significant archaeological resources and their salvage.  As a result, impacts are considered to be less 

than significant.   

C. Would the project directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique 

geologic feature? ● No Impact. 

According to the State of California Geological Survey, the site’s geology is classified as “Alluvium” (Qal).  

Alluvium soil deposits that are present in a natural and undisturbed condition may contain 

paleontological resources, though these resources are more typically found in marine terraces and shales.  

The on-site soils have undergone disturbance due to the previous development and other on-site 

activities.  In addition, the on-site soils that underlie the property are Holocene-aged deposits that have a 

low potential for the discovery of paleontological resources.  These soils are recent deposits that do not 

contain fossil deposits.  Furthermore, the on-site improvements (re-grading and re-paving of the 

accessible travel and parking areas and the installation of the outdoor turf field and landscaping) will not 

require extensive excavation.  Thus, the proposed project is not anticipated to disturb any paleontological 

resources and no impacts will occur.  

D. Would the project disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated 

cemeteries? ● No Impact. 

Olive Grove Cemetery is located approximately 200 feet southeast of the project site.44   Just before the 

turn of the century, a colony of German Baptists known as Dunkers settled in the area and founded the 

Olive Grove Cemetery.  In 1972, the colony moved to Modesto, leaving behind their church and the 

neighboring graveyard.45  The church no longer exists but the cemetery remains.  In addition, the 

proposed site improvements are not likely to neither discover nor disturb any on-site burials due to the 

level of urbanization present and the amount of disturbance sustained to accommodate the previous 

development.  Notwithstanding, in the event of an accidental discovery, Title 14; Chapter 3; Article 5; 

Section 15064.5 of CEQA will apply in terms of the identification of significant archaeological resources 

and their salvage.  As a result, the proposed site improvement activities are not anticipated to impact any 

interred human remains. 

3.5.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The potential environmental impacts related to cultural resources are site-specific.  Furthermore, the 

analysis herein determined that the proposed project would not result in any impacts on cultural 

resources.  As a result, no cumulative impacts will occur as part of the proposed project’s implementation.   

 

                                                 
44 Google Earth. Website accessed October 13, 2017. 
 
45 Los Angeles Times.  Pioneer Cemeteries: These old resting places have a natural ambiance often missing in modern manicured 

parks.  November 21, 1994. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 50 

3.5.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The potential environmental impacts related to cultural resources are site-specific.  Furthermore, the 

analysis herein determined that the proposed project would not result in any impacts on cultural 

resources and that no mitigation measures are required.   

3.6 GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

3.6.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on geology and soils if it results in any of the following: 

● The exposure of people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of 

loss, injury, or death involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, strong seismic ground 

shaking, seismic-related ground failure including liquefaction, or landslides; 

● Substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil; 

● Locating a project on a geologic unit or a soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a 

result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 

subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse; 

● Locating a project on an expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the California Building Code, 

creating substantial risks to life or property; or,  

● Locating a project on soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or 

alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of 

wastewater. 

3.6.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the 

risk of loss, injury, or death involving rupture of a known earthquake fault (as delineated on the 

most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area 

or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault), strong seismic ground shaking, seismic-

related ground failure including liquefaction, or landslides? ● Less Than Significant Impact.   

The City of Santa Fe Springs is located in a seismically active region (refer to Exhibit 3-3).  Many major 

and minor local faults traverse the entire Southern California region, posing a threat to millions of 

residents, including those who reside in the City of Santa Fe Springs.  Earthquakes from several active and 

potentially active faults in the Southern California region could affect the proposed project site.  In 1972, 

the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Zoning Act was passed in response to the damage sustained in the 1971 San  

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 51 

 

EXHIBIT 3-3 
FAULTS IN THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA AREA 

SOURCE: UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 

Project Area 
Project 

Area 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 52 

Fernando Earthquake.46  The Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act's main purpose is to prevent the 

construction of buildings used for human occupancy on the surface trace of active faults.47  A list of cities 

and counties subject to the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones is available on the State’s Department 

of Conservation website.  The City of Santa Fe Springs is not on the list.48  However, the project site is 

located between the Whittier Fault and the Newport-Inglewood Fault.   

According to the United States Geological Survey, liquefaction is the process by which water-saturated 

sediment temporarily loses strength and acts as a fluid.  Essentially, liquefaction is the process by which 

the ground soil loses strength due to an increase in water pressure following seismic activity.  According to 

the California Geological Survey, the project site is not located within an area that is subject to 

liquefaction (refer to Exhibit 3-4).49  Lastly, the project site is not subject to the risk of landslides (refer to 

Exhibit 3-4) because there are no hills or mountains within the vicinity of the project site.  As a result, the 

potential impacts in regards to ground shaking, liquefaction, and landslides are less than significant since 

the risk is no greater in and around the project site than for the rest of the area.   

B. Would the project result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? ● Less than Significant 

Impact.   

According to the soil maps prepared for Los Angeles County by the United States Department of 

Agriculture, the project site is underlain with soils of the Urban Land-Thums-Pierview complex.50  Soils of 

the Urban Land-Thums-Pierview complex have a slight erosion hazard; however, current development 

and the placement of landscaping have reduced the soil’s erosion risk.  Two building currently located on-

site will be utilized by the occupant (Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy) and the proposed project will not 

involve the construction of buildings.  On-site improvements will include the re-grading and re-paving of 

the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation of a 75-foot wide by 112-foot long outdoor 

artificial turf field, and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which currently exists.  The 

project site is currently level and limited excavation will be required for the installation of the outdoor turf 

field and landscaping.  Furthermore, the re-grading of the project site will reduce potential stormwater 

runoff impacts.  Mitigation measures included throughout Section 3.9 (Hydrology and Water Quality) will 

effectively mitigate potential soil erosion and stormwater runoff impacts during the installation of the on-

site improvements.  As a result, the impacts will be less than significant.   

 

 

                                                 
46 California Department of Conservation. What is the Alquist-Priolo Act.  

http://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/rghm/ap/Pages/main.aspx. 
 
47 Ibid.  
 
48 California Department of Conservation.  Table 4, Cities and Counties Affected by Alquist Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones as of 

January 2010.  http://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/rghm/ap/Pages/affected.aspx 
 
49 California Department of Conservation.  Regulatory Maps.  

http://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/informationwarehouse/index.html?map=regulatorymaps.  Secondary Source: California 
Building Standards Commission.  California Building Standards Code (California Code of Regulations, Title 24).  July 1, 2016. 

 
50 United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service.  Web Soil Survey.  Website accessed October 

13, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 53 

  

EXHIBIT 3-4 
LIQUEFACTION RISK 

SOURCE: CALIFORNIA GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 
 

Project Area 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 54 

C. Would the project be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become 

unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral 

spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse? ● Less Than Significant Impact.   

The United States Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service Report and General Soil Map for 

Los Angeles County were reviewed for this project.  The project site is underlain with soils of the Urban 

Land-Thums-Pierview complex.  These soils have a slight risk for erosion; however, the project site is 

currently developed and the underlying soils have been disturbed in order to facilitate previous 

construction activities.  In addition, Urban Land-Thums-Pierview complex soils are described as being 

used almost exclusively for residential and industrial development, as evident by the current level of 

urbanization present within the project site and surrounding areas.51   

According to the California Geological Survey, the project site is not located within an area that is subject 

to liquefaction (refer to Exhibit 3-4).52  In addition, the project site is not subject to the risk of landslides 

(refer to Exhibit 3-4) because there are no hills or mountains within the vicinity of the project site.  

Therefore, the soils that underlie the project site pose no threat to development.  Therefore, the proposed 

project will not expose any person or structure to risks associated with soil collapse, landslides, or soil 

expansion.  As a result, the potential impacts are less than significant.   

D. Would the project be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the California Building 

Code (2012), creating substantial risks to life or property? ● No Impact. 

The soils that underlie the project site are not prone to shrinking and swelling.  Shrinking and swelling is 

influenced by the amount of clay present in the underlying soils.53  According to the United States 

Department of Agriculture, clay is present in the composition of Urban Land-Thums-Pierview complex 

soils.54  The two buildings currently located on-site will be utilized by Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy 

and the proposed project will not involve the construction of buildings.  The project site is currently 

developed and the underlying soils have been disturbed in order to facilitate previous construction 

activities.  In addition, Urban Land-Thums-Pierview complex soils are described as being used almost 

exclusively for residential and industrial development, as evident by the current level of urbanization 

present within the project site and surrounding areas.  As a result, no impacts related to expansive soils 

are anticipated. 

 

                                                 
51 United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service.  Web Soil Survey.  Website accessed October 

13, 2017. 
 
52 California Department of Conservation.  Regulatory Maps.  

http://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/informationwarehouse/index.html?map=regulatorymaps.  Secondary Source: California 
Building Standards Commission.  California Building Standards Code (California Code of Regulations, Title 24).  July 1, 2016. 

 
53 Natural Resources Conservation Service Arizona. Soil Properties Shrink/Swell Potential.  

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs /detailfull/az/soils/?cid=nrcs144p2_065083. 
 
54 United States Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service. Report and General Soil Map Los Angeles County, California. 

Revised 1969. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 55 

E. Would the project have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or 

alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of 

wastewater? ● No Impact. 

The proposed project will not utilize septic tanks or other alternative wastewater disposal systems.  As a 

result, no impacts associated with the use of septic tanks will occur.   

3.6.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis herein determined that the proposed project would not result in significant adverse impacts 

related to ground shaking, liquefaction, landslides, soil erosion, lateral spreading, or subsidence.  As a 

result, no cumulative impacts will occur.   

3.6.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis indicated that the proposed project would not result in any impacts on geology and soils.  As 

a result, no mitigation measures are required.   

3.7 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

3.7.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on greenhouse gas emissions if it results in any of the following: 

● The generation of greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a 

significant impact on the environment; and, 

● A conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 

emissions of greenhouse gases. 

3.7.2 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 

A. Would the project generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a 

significant impact on the environment? ● Less Than Significant Impact.  

The State of California requires CEQA documents to include an evaluation of greenhouse gas (GHG) 

emissions or gases that trap heat in the atmosphere.  GHG are emitted by both natural processes and 

human activities.  Examples of GHG that are produced both by natural and industrial processes include 

carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), and nitrous oxide (N2O).  The accumulation of GHG in the 

atmosphere regulates the earth's temperature.  Without these natural GHG, the Earth's surface would be 

about 61°F cooler.  However, emissions from fossil fuel combustion have elevated the concentrations of 

GHG in the atmosphere to above natural levels.   Scientific evidence indicates there is a correlation 

between increasing global temperatures/climate change over the past century and human-induced levels 

of GHG.  These and other environmental changes have potentially negative environmental, economic, 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 56 

and social consequences around the globe.  GHG differ from criteria or toxic air pollutants in that the 

GHG emissions do not cause direct adverse human health effects.  Rather, the direct environmental 

effect of GHG emissions is the increase in global temperatures, which in turn has numerous impacts on 

the environment and humans.  For example, some observed changes to include shrinking glaciers, 

thawing permafrost, late freezing and early break-up of ice on rivers and lakes, a lengthened growing 

season, shifts in plant and animal ranges, and earlier flowering of trees.  Other, longer term 

environmental impacts of global warming may include a rise in sea level, changing weather patterns with 

increases in the severity of storms and droughts, changes to local and regional ecosystems, including the 

potential loss of species, and a significant reduction in winter snow pack.  

The SCAQMD has recommended several GHG thresholds of significance.  These thresholds include 1,400 

metric tons of CO2E (MTCO2E) per year for commercial projects, 3,500 MTCO2E per year for residential 

projects, 3,000 MTCO2E per year for mixed-use projects, and 10,000 MTCO2E per year for industrial 

projects.  Table 3-5 summarizes annual greenhouse gas (CO2E) emissions from build-out of the proposed 

project.55  Carbon dioxide equivalent, or CO2E, is a term that is used for describing different greenhouse 

gases in a common and collective unit.  As indicated in Table 3-5, the CO2E total for the project is 1,916.67 

pounds per day or 0.87 MTCO2E per day.  This translates into an annual emission of 317.55 MTCO2E, 

which is below the all of the aforementioned thresholds.  This figure does not take into account the 

implementation of Low Impact Development (LID) requirements (drought tolerant landscaping, water 

efficient appliances, and energy efficient appliances) and compliance to Transportation Demand 

Management (TDM) requirements.  As indicated in Table 3-5, the great majority of the GHG emissions 

will be generated from mobile sources.  For this reason, the project’s use of trip reduction incentives (the 

use of alternative forms of transportation, the installation of electric vehicle charging stations and bicycle 

racks, and other TDM measures) will be important.  Therefore, the project’s GHG impacts are less than 

significant.  

Table 3-5 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 

Source 
GHG Emissions (Lbs/Day) 

CO2 CH4 N2O CO2E 

Construction Phase - Demolition  1,169.35 0.23 -- 1,174.99 

Construction Phase - Site Preparation 982.71 0.31 -- 990.36 

Construction Phase - Grading 1,169.35 0.23 -- 1,174.99 

Construction Phase - Paving 1,070.14 0.30 -- 1,077.68 

Long-term Area Emissions -- -- -- -- 

Long-term Energy Emissions 52.68 -- -- 52.99 

Long-term Mobile Emissions 1,861.09 0.10 -- 1,863.68 

Total Long-term Emissions 1,913.77 0.10 -- 1,916.67 

Source: CalEEMod Version 2016.3.1. 

 

                                                 
55 The CalEEMod Air Quality Worksheets are provided in Appendix A. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 57 

B. Would the project conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of 

reducing emissions of greenhouse gases? ● No Impact. 

The City of Santa Fe Springs does not presently have an adopted Climate Action Plan.  However, the City’s 

General Plan includes a Conservation Element that has an air quality focus.  In this section, the following 

policies related to air quality are identified: 

● Policy 2.1:  Continue to research alternatives and pollution control measures that influence air 

quality, including trip reductions, carpooling, and local transit services. 

● Policy 2.2:  Encourage urban infill and land uses and densities that result in reduced trips and 

reduced trip lengths, and that support non-motorized modes of travel.  

● Policy 2.3: Initiate capital improvement programs that allow for bus turnouts, traffic 

synchronization, and intersection channelization.  

● Policy 2.4:  Continue to participate and support cooperative programs between cities which will 

reduce trips and vehicle miles traveled. 

The proposed project will not involve or require any variance from the aforementioned policies.  

Furthermore, the proposed project will not involve or require any other variance from the adopted plan, 

policy, or regulation governing GHG emissions.  As a result, no impacts will occur. 

3.7.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis herein also determined that the proposed project would not result in any significant adverse 

impacts related to the emissions of greenhouse gasses.  As a result, no cumulative impacts will result from 

the proposed project’s implementation.   

3.7.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of potential impacts related to greenhouse gas emissions indicated that no significant 

adverse impacts would result from the proposed project’s approval and subsequent implementation.  As a 

result, no mitigation measures are required.   

3.8 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  

3.8.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on hazards and hazardous materials if it results in any of the following: 

● The creation of a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine 

transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials; 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 58 

● The creation of a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably 

foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the 

environment; 

● The emission of hazardous emissions or the handling of hazardous or acutely hazardous 

materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school; 

● Locating a project on a site that is included on a list of hazardous material sites compiled 

pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, resulting in a significant hazard to the public or 

the environment; 

● A safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area for a project within an area 

governed by an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two 

miles of a public airport or a public use airport; 

● A safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area for a project in the vicinity of a 

private airstrip; 

● The impairment of the implementation of, or physical interference with, an adopted emergency 

response plan or emergency evacuation plan; or, 

● The exposure of people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving 

wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are 

intermixed with wildlands. 

3.8.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine 

transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials? ● No Impact. 

The project site is currently occupied by two industrial buildings and concrete- and asphalt-paved 

surfaces.  The proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the 

construction of new buildings.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project involve the re-

grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation an outdoor turf field, 

and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  Due to the nature of the 

proposed project, no hazardous materials will be used on-site beyond those which are used for routine 

cleaning and maintenance.  As a result, no impacts will occur with the implementation of the proposed 

project.   

B. Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably 

foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the 

environment? ● Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation.   

The project site is currently occupied by two industrial buildings and concrete- and asphalt-paved 

surfaces.  The proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 59 

construction of any new buildings.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project involve the re-

grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation an outdoor turf field, 

and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  As stated in Section 

3.8.2.A, no hazardous materials will be used on-site beyond those which are used for routine cleaning and 

maintenance.   

The City of Santa Fe Springs contains multiple methane risk zones.  Methane is an odorless, combustible 

gas that may become explosive if concentrations are great enough in enclosed, unventilated spaces.  

Methane is a direct result of the decomposition of organic materials that are buried within the area 

landfills.  The project site is located within a methane zone.56  Due to the high occupancy rate of the 

proposed soccer facility use, the following mitigation is required: 

● Wall-mounted methane gas detectors must be installed and maintained throughout the proposed 

project site in order to detect an intrusion of methane into the proposed project.  The wall-

mounted methane gas detectors must be installed and maintained in compliance with all 

requirements set by the City of Santa Fe Springs Department of Fire and Rescue.   

Adherence to the mitigation provided above will reduce potential methane impacts to levels that are less 

than significant.   

C. Would the project emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 

substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? ● No Impact.   

St. Paul High School is located approximately 0.25 miles northwest of the project site.  Richard L. Graves 

Middle School is located approximately 500 feet east of the project site and Lake Marie Elementary 

School is located approximately 0.26 miles east of the project site and is adjacent to Richard L. Graves 

Middle School.57  As stated in Section 3.8.2.A, no hazardous materials will be used on-site beyond those 

which are used for routine cleaning and maintenance.  Therefore, the proposed project will not create a 

hazard to any local school and no impacts are anticipated.  

D. Would the project be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous material sites compiled 

pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard 

to the public or the environment? ● No Impact. 

Government Code Section 65962.5 refers to the Hazardous Waste and Substances Site List, commonly 

known as the Cortese List, maintained by the California Department of Toxic Substances Control.  The 

Cortese list contains hazardous waste and substance sites including public drinking water wells with 

detectable levels of contamination, sites with known underground storage tanks (USTs) having a 

reportable release, solid waste disposal facilities from which there is a known migration, hazardous 

                                                 
56 E-mail communication with Thomas Hall, Director of Environmental & Fire Protection.  November 7, 2017.  Secondary Source: 

City of Santa Fe Springs. Methane Zone Map. http://www.santafesprings.org/civica/filebank/blobdload.asp?BlobID=3424. 
 
57 Google Earth.  Website accessed October 16, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 60 

substance sites selected for remedial action, historic Cortese sites, and sites with known toxic material 

identified through the abandoned site assessment program.58   

A search of the Envirostor Hazardous Waste and Substances Site “Cortese” List database identified five 

Cortese sites within the City: Angeles Chemical Company, Inc. (located at 8915 Sorensen Avenue), Waste 

Disposal, Inc. (located at 12731 Los Nietos Road), Cal-Tron Plating, Inc. (located at 11919 East Rivera 

Road), Neville Chemical Company (located at 12800 Imperial Highway), and McKesson Chemical 

Company (located at 9005 Sorensen Avenue).59  The nearest of these Cortese sites to the project site is 

Waste Disposal, Inc., located approximately 0.30 miles northwest of the project site.  It is unlikely that 

these sites represent an environmental concern to the project site due to their distance from the project 

site.  Furthermore, proposed on-site improvements will be restricted to the designated project site and 

will not affect any of the aforementioned sites.  As a result, no impacts will occur upon the 

implementation of the proposed project. 

E. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 

within two miles of a public airport or a public use airport, would the project result in a safety 

hazard for people residing or working in the project area? ● No Impact. 

The project site is not located within two miles of a public airport or public use airport.  Fullerton Airport 

is located approximately 6.28 miles southeast of the project site and the Long Beach Airport is located 

approximately 9.80 miles to the southwest.60  The proposed project is not located within the Runway 

Protection Zones (RPZ) of any of the aforementioned airports.  In addition, the proposed project will not 

penetrate the designated slopes for any of the aforementioned airports.  Essentially, the proposed project 

will not introduce a building that will interfere with the approach and take-off of airplanes utilizing any of 

the aforementioned airports and will not risk the safety of the people working in the project area.  As a 

result, no impacts will occur.  

F. For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard for 

people residing or working in the project area? ● No Impact.  

The nearest private heliport is located 1.30 miles east of the project site (Presbyterian Intercommunity 

Hospital Heliport).61  Due to the project site’s distance from the abovementioned private heliport, the 

proposed project will not present a safety hazard for people working in the project area.  

 

 

                                                 
58 California Department of Toxic Substances Control, Envirostor.  Hazardous Waste and Substances Site Cortese List.  

http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/search.asp?cmd=search&reporttype=CORTESE&site_type=CSITES,OPEN,FUDS,CLOS
E&status=ACT,BKLG,COM&reporttitle=HAZARDOUS+WASTE+AND+SUBSTANCES+SITE+LIST.   

 
59 California Department of Toxic Substances Control. DTSC’s Hazardous Waste and Substances Site List – Site Cleanup (Cortese 

List).  http://www.dtsc.ca.gov/SiteCleanup/Cortese_List.cfm.  
 
60 Toll-Free Airline. Los Angeles County Public and Private Airports, California.  

http://www.tollfreeairline.com/california/losangeles.htm.  
 
61 Ibid. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 61 

G. Would the project impair implementation of, or physically interfere with, an adopted emergency 

response plan or emergency evacuation plan? ● No Impact.  

As previously mentioned, the proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not 

involve the construction of new buildings.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project involve 

the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation an outdoor turf 

field, and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  Due to the limited 

amount of on-site improvements, at no time will Los Nietos Road be closed to traffic.  As a result, the 

project would not impair the implementation of, or physically interfere with, an adopted emergency 

response plan or emergency evacuation plan and no impacts are associated with the proposed project’s 

implementation. 

H. Would the project expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving 

wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are 

intermixed with wildlands? ● No Impact.  

The project area is urbanized and all neighboring parcels have been developed.  There are no areas of 

native vegetation found within the project site or in the surrounding properties that could provide a fuel 

source for a wildfire.  As a result, there are no impacts associated with potential wildfires from off-site 

locations. 

3.8.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis herein determined that the implementation of the proposed project would not result in any 

significant adverse impacts related to hazards and/or hazardous materials.  As a result, no cumulative 

impacts related to hazards or hazardous materials will result from the proposed project’s implementation.   

3.8.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The following mitigation is required due to the high occupancy of the proposed soccer facility use: 

Mitigation Measure No. 1 (Hazards and Hazardous Materials).  Wall-mounted methane gas 

detectors must be installed and maintained throughout the proposed project site in order to detect an 

intrusion of methane into the proposed project.  The wall-mounted methane gas detectors must be 

installed and maintained in compliance with all requirements set by the City of Santa Fe Springs 

Department of Fire and Rescue.   

3.9 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 

3.9.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on hydrology and water quality if it results in any of the following: 

● A violation of any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements; 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 62 

● A substantial depletion of groundwater supplies or interference with groundwater recharge such 

that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table 

level;  

● A substantial alteration of the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 

alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner that would result in substantial erosion 

or siltation on- or off-site;  

● A substantial alteration of the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 

alteration of the course of a stream or river, or a substantial increase in the rate or amount of 

surface runoff in a manner that would result in flooding on- or off-site; 

● The creation or contribution of runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or 

planned stormwater drainage systems or the provision of substantial additional sources of 

polluted runoff;  

● The substantial degradation of water quality; 

● The placement of housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood 

Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map;  

● The placement of structures within a 100-year flood hazard area which would impede or redirect 

flood flows;   

● The exposure of people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving 

flooding, including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam; or, 

● Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow.   

3.9.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? ● Less 

Than Significant Impact. 

The project site is currently occupied by two industrial buildings and concrete- and asphalt-paved 

surfaces.  The proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the 

construction of new buildings.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project involve the re-

grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation an outdoor turf field, 

and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  A total of 3,725 square 

feet will be dedicated for landscaping and will include both existing and proposed landscaping.  The 

existing landscaping includes 1,946 square feet of land area along the Los Nietos Road frontage.  An 

additional 1,779 square feet of landscaping will be installed along the Los Nietos frontage and throughout 

the parking areas. 

The total amount of proposed landscaping will include 3,725 square feet, which will result in 7.81 percent 

coverage of the project site in pervious surfaces.  The total amount of proposed landscaping is below the 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 63 

amount of landscaping that is required by the City for the proposed project.  The applicant will request a 

Modification of Property Development Standards Permit (MOD) to allow for the amount of landscaping 

that is proposed.  In the absence of mitigation, a significant amount of impervious surfaces (i.e. buildings, 

internal driveways, parking areas, etc.) may result in debris, leaves, soils, oil/grease, and other pollutants.  

As previously mentioned, the proposed project will involve the installation of an additional 1,779 square 

feet in landscaping for the project site.  Therefore, the amount of impervious surfaces will decrease.  In 

addition, the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking will ensure that the 

site will be graded so that stormwater runoff will be directed to the curbs and gutters on Los Nietos Road.   

Nevertheless, the proposed project, like all development or re-development within the City, will be 

required to conform to Chapter 52 (Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) of the City of Santa 

Fe Springs Municipal Code.  According to the municipal code, the proposed project would be required to 

implement stormwater pollution control measures pursuant to the National Pollutant Discharge 

Elimination System (NPDES) requirements.  As indicated in the municipal code, the proposed project will 

be required to conform to the City’s stormwater management requirements through the preparation and 

submittal of a Standard Urban Stormwater Mitigation Plan (SUSMP), which shall include the applicable 

Low Impact Development (LID) requirements set forth in Chapter 52 of the municipal code as an element 

of the SUSMP.  The LID will also identify post-construction best management practices (BMPs) that will 

be the responsibility of the applicant to implement, operate and maintain over the life of the project.  

Compliance with the above mentioned requirements will reduce the impacts related to water quality 

standards and waste discharge requirements to levels that are considered to be less than significant. 

B. Would the project substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with 

groundwater recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the 

local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a 

level that would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have been 

granted)? ● No Impact.  

A search was conducted through the Regional Water Quality Control Board’s on-line database Geotracker 

to identify the presence of any natural underground water wells within the project site.  The search 

yielded no results.62  In addition, the proposed project will be connected to the City’s utility lines and will 

not deplete groundwater supplies.  Since there are no underground wells on-site that would be impacted 

by the proposed development, no impacts will occur.   

C. Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including 

through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in 

substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site? ● Less Than Significant Impact.   

The project site is currently occupied by two industrial buildings and concrete- and asphalt-paved 

surfaces.  The proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the 

construction of new buildings.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project involve the re-

grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation an outdoor turf field, 

and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  A total of 3,725 square 

                                                 
62 Geotracker GAMA.  http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/default.asp.  Website accessed October 16, 

2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 64 

feet will be dedicated for landscaping and will include both existing and proposed landscaping.  The 

existing landscaping includes 1,946 square feet of land area along the Los Nietos Road frontage.  An 

additional 1,779 square feet of landscaping will be installed along the Los Nietos frontage and throughout 

the parking areas.  The total amount of proposed landscaping will include 3,725 square feet, which will 

result in 7.81 percent coverage of the project site in pervious surfaces.  The total amount of proposed 

landscaping is below the amount of landscaping that is required by the City for the proposed project.  The 

applicant will request a Modification of Property Development Standards Permit (MOD) to allow for the 

amount of landscaping that is proposed.   

As indicated previously, impervious surfaces (internal driveways, parking areas, etc.) may result in the 

generation of stormwater runoff.  However, the project will be properly drained and is not expected to 

result in erosion or siltation on- or off-site.  On-site improvements will include the re-grading and re-

paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, which will ensure that the site will be graded so that 

stormwater runoff will be directed to the curbs and gutters on Los Nietos Road.  Furthermore, there are 

no streams, rivers, or other bodies of water located within, or adjacent to the project site.  The proposed 

project will be restricted to the project site and will not alter the course of the Coyote Creek Channel, 

which is located 0.31 miles northeast of the project site.63  In addition, no natural drainage or riparian 

areas remain within the project site due to the past development.  As a result, less than significant impacts 

are anticipated.   

D. Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including 

through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or 

amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site? ● Less Than 

Significant Impact. 

As indicated previously, impervious surfaces (internal driveways, parking areas, etc.) may result in the 

generation of stormwater runoff.  However, the project will be properly drained and is not expected to 

result in flooding on-or off-site.  On-site improvements will include the re-grading and re-paving of the 

accessible paths of travel and parking, which will ensure that the site will be graded so that stormwater 

runoff will be directed to the curbs and gutters on Los Nietos Road.  As indicated in the previous section, 

the proposed project will be restricted to the project site and will not alter the course of the Coyote Creek 

Channel, which is located 0.31 miles northeast of the project site.  No other natural or man-made 

channels are located adjacent to the site or in the immediate vicinity.  As a result, less than significant 

impacts are anticipated.   

E. Would the project create or contribute runoff water that would exceed the capacity of existing or 

planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 

● Less Than Significant Impact. 

A total of 3,725 square feet will be dedicated for landscaping and will include both existing and proposed 

landscaping.  The existing landscaping includes 1,946 square feet of land area along the Los Nietos Road 

frontage.  An additional 1,779 square feet of landscaping will be installed along the Los Nietos frontage 

and throughout the parking areas.  The total amount of proposed landscaping will include 3,725 square 

feet, which will result in 7.81 percent coverage of the project site in pervious surfaces.  The total amount of 
                                                 
63 Google Earth.  Website accessed October 16, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 65 

proposed landscaping is below the amount of landscaping that is required by the City for the proposed 

project.  The applicant will request a Modification of Property Development Standards Permit (MOD) to 

allow for the amount of landscaping that is proposed.   

In the absence of mitigation, the impervious surfaces (internal driveways, parking areas, etc.) could lead 

to the presence of debris, leaves, soils, oil/grease, and other pollutants within the parking areas.  As 

previously mentioned, the proposed project will involve the installation of an additional 1,779 square feet 

in landscaping for the project site.  Therefore, the amount of impervious surfaces will decrease.  In 

addition, the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking will ensure that the 

site will be graded so that stormwater runoff will be directed to the curbs and gutters on Los Nietos Road.   

Nevertheless, the proposed project, like all development or re-development within the City, will be 

required to conform to Chapter 52 (Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) of the City of Santa 

Fe Springs Municipal Code.  As indicated in the municipal code, the proposed project will be required to 

conform to the City’s stormwater management requirements through the preparation and submittal of a 

Standard Urban Stormwater Mitigation Plan (SUSMP), which shall include the applicable Low Impact 

Development (LID) requirements set forth in Chapter 52 of the municipal code as an element of the 

SUSMP.  Compliance with the above mentioned requirements will reduce the impacts related to 

stormwater to levels that are considered to be less than significant. 

F. Would the project otherwise substantially degrade water quality? ● No Impact. 

As previously mentioned in Sections 3.9.2.A and 3.9.2.E, adherence to the requirements in Chapter 52 
(Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) of the City of Santa Fe Springs Municipal Code will 
reduce potential water quality impacts to levels that are less than significant.  As a result, no other impacts 
are anticipated.  

G. Would the project place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood 

Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? ● No 

Impact. 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan, “The 100-year flooding event 

is a flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in magnitude in any given year.  

Contrary to popular belief, it is not a flood occurring once every 100 years.  The 100-year floodplain is the 

area adjoining a river, stream, or watercourse covered by water in the event of a 100-year flood.”   

According to the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works map provided in Exhibit 3-5, the 

project site is not located within a designated 100-year flood hazard area, as defined by the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).64  According to the FEMA flood insurance map obtained from 

the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works, the proposed project site is located in Zone X (refer 

to Exhibit 3-5).65  This flood zone has an annual probability of flooding of less than 0.2 percent and  

                                                 
64 Federal Emergency Management Agency.  Flood Zones.  http://www.fema.gov/flood-zones.   
 
65 Los Angeles County Department of Public Works.  Flood Zone Determination Website.  

http://dpw.lacounty.gov/wmd/floodzone/.  Website accessed October 17, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 66 

 

 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 3-5 
FEMA FLOOD MAP 

SOURCE: LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

Project Area 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 67 

represents areas outside the 500-year flood plain.  Thus, properties located in Zone X are not located 

within a 100-year flood plain.  Therefore, no impacts related to flood flows are associated with the 

proposed project’s implementation.   

H. Would the project place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which would impede or 

redirect flood flows? ● No Impact. 

As indicated previously, the project site is not located within a designated 100-year flood hazard area as 

defined by FEMA.66  According to the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works map provided in 

Exhibit 3-5, the project site is not located within a designated 100-year flood hazard area, as defined by 

FEMA.  As a result, the proposed project will not involve the placement of any structures that would 

impede or redirect potential floodwater flows since the site is not located within a flood hazard area.  

Therefore, no flood-related impacts are anticipated with the proposed project’s implementation. 

I. Would the project expose people or structures to a significant risk of flooding, including flooding as 

a result of the failure of a levee or dam? ● No Impact. 

The Santa Fe Springs General Plan and the City’s Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan indicates the greatest 

potential for dam failure and the attendant inundation comes from the Whittier Narrows Dam located 

approximately five miles northwest of the City.  The City of Santa Fe Springs Multi-Hazard Functional 

Plan states there is a low risk that the City will experience flooding due to dam failure.  Nevertheless, in 

the event of dam failure, the western portion of the City located to the west of Norwalk Boulevard would 

experience flooding approximately one hour after dam failure.  The maximum flood depths could reach as 

high as five feet in depth, gradually declining to four feet at the southern end of the City's impacted area.67  

The project site is located 1.1 miles east of Norwalk Boulevard and would not be impacted.  As a result, 
no impacts related to flooding will occur. 

J. Would the project result in inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? ● No Impact. 

The proposed project is not located in an area that is subject to inundation by seiche or tsunami.  As 

indicated earlier, there are no rivers located in the vicinity that would result in a seiche.  In addition, the 

project site is located approximately 21 miles inland from the Pacific Ocean and the project site would not 

be exposed to the effects of a tsunami.68  Lastly, the proposed project will not result in any mudslides since 

the project site is generally level.  As a result, no impacts are expected.  

3.9.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The potential impacts related to hydrology and storm water runoff are typically site-specific.  

Furthermore, the analysis determined that the implementation of the proposed project would not result in 

any significant adverse impacts with the adoption of the appropriate mitigation measures.  As a result, no 

cumulative impacts are anticipated.   

                                                 
66 Los Angeles County Department of Public Works.  Flood Zone Determination Website.  

http://dpw.lacounty.gov/wmd/floodzone/.  Website accessed October 17, 2017. 
 
67 City of Santa Fe Springs.  Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan.  October 11, 2004. 
 
68 Google Earth.  Website accessed October 17, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 68 

3.9.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis determined that the impacts related to stormwater discharge and water quality are less than 

significant with adherence to Chapter 52 (Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) of the City of 

Santa Fe Springs Municipal Code.  In addition, it was also determined that no impacts related to flooding 

or inundation will result upon implementation of the proposed project.   

3.10 LAND USE AND PLANNING 

3.10.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on land use and planning if it results in any of the following: 

● The physical division of an established community, or in and incompatible land use; 

● A conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction 

over the project adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect; or, 

● A conflict with any applicable conservation plan or natural community conservation plan. 

3.10.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project physically divide an established community, or otherwise result in an 

incompatible land use? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

A single-family residential neighborhood is located approximately 650 feet north of the project site within 

South Whittier.  The proposed project will be restricted to the project site and will not divide or disrupt 

the single-family residential neighborhood.  The project site’s zoning designation is Heavy 

Manufacturing (M-2) (refer to Exhibit 3-6 for the zoning map) and its General Plan land use designation 

is Industrial (refer to Exhibit 3-7 for the General Plan land use map).  Although the proposed soccer 

facility use is not permitted within the M-2 zone, it is conditionally permitted under Section 155.243 (M-2 

Heavy Manufacturing Zone District, Conditional Uses) of the Santa Fe Springs Zoning Code as a “public, 

private or quasi-public use of an educational or recreational nature.”  The proposed project will require 

the approval by the City Planning Commission of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to permit the soccer 

facility use within the industrially zoned area.  The approval of the CUP will require careful consideration 

by the Planning Commission to determine whether or not the proposed use will be compatible.  In 

addition, the mitigation measures included herein will assist in assuring that the environmental impacts 

resulting from of the proposed project are reduced to levels that are less than significant.  Therefore, less 

than significant impacts will occur upon implementation of the proposed project. 

 

  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 69 

 

 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 3-6 
ZONING MAP 
SOURCE: QUANTUMGIS 

Single Family 
Residential Areas 

Project Site 

Heavy Manufacturing (M-2) 

Buffer Parking (BP) 

Single-family Residential (R-1) 

Not part of City 

Light Manufacturing (M-1) 

M-2 Planned Development 
Overlay Zone (M-2-PD) 

M-1 Planned Development 
Overlay Zone (M-1-PD) 

Public Facilities (PF) 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 70 

 

 

 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 3-7 
GENERAL PLAN MAP 

SOURCE: QUANTUMGIS 

Project Site 

Single-family 
Residential Areas 

Single-family 
Residential 

Public Facilities 

Not Part of City 

Open Space 

Commercial 

Industrial 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 71 

B. Would the project conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with 

jurisdiction over the project (including, but not limited to, a general plan, specific plan, local coastal 

program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental 

effect? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

As indicated in the previous subsection, the proposed project will require the approval by the City 

Planning Commission of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to permit the soccer facility use within the 

industrially zoned area.  The approval of the CUP will require careful consideration by the Planning 

Commission to determine whether or not the proposed use will be compatible.  In addition, the mitigation 

measures included herein will assist in assuring that the environmental impacts resulting from of the 

proposed project are reduced to levels that are less than significant.  In addition, the project site is located 

approximately 21 miles inland from the Pacific Ocean and is not subject to a local coastal program.69  

Therefore, less than significant impacts will occur upon implementation of the proposed project. 

C. Would the project conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community 

conservation plan? ● No Impact. 

The proposed project will not impact an adopted or approved local, regional, or State habitat conservation 

plan or natural community conservation plan because the proposed project is located in the midst of an 

urban area.  In addition, the Puente Hills Significant Ecological Area (SEA #15) is the closest protected 

SEA and is located approximately 2.70 miles northeast of the project site.70  The improvement of the site 

and operation of the proposed project will be restricted to the project site and will not affect the Puente 

Hills SEA.  Therefore, no impacts will result.   

3.10.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The potential cumulative impacts with respect to land use are site-specific.  Furthermore, the analysis 

determined that the proposed project will not result in any significant impacts.  As a result, no cumulative 

land use impacts will occur as part of the proposed project’s implementation. 

3.10.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis determined that no significant impacts on land use and planning would result upon the 

implementation of the proposed project.  As a result, no mitigation measures are required. 

3.11 MINERAL RESOURCES 

3.11.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on mineral resources if it results in any of the following: 

                                                 
69 Google Earth.  Website accessed October 17, 2017. 
 
70 County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning.  Significant Ecological Areas and Coastal Resource Areas Policy Map.  

February 2015. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 72 

● The loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the 

residents of the State; or, 

● The loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local 

general plan, specific plan or other land use plan. 

3.11.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of 

value to the region and the residents of the State? ● No Impact. 

According to the California Department of Conservation Division of Oil, Gas, and Geothermal Resources 

(DOGGR) Well Finder, two former oil wells are located within the project site, approximately 50 feet away 

from the project site’s southern boundary line.71  As previously mentioned, the proposed project does not 

involve the demolition or construction of any buildings and therefore will not interfere with the former oil 

wells.  The proposed project will involve minimal ground disturbance that will be associated with the re-

grading of the travel and vehicle accessible areas, the installation of the outdoor turf field in the rear 

portion of the project site and the installation of the additional landscaping within the site.  The limited 

on-site improvements will not interfere with the former oil wells due to the location of the improvements 

and the limited extent of ground disturbance that will occur.  The City of Santa Fe Springs Department of 

Fire and Rescue has addressed the issue and determined that no action is required on behalf of the 

project applicant and that no mitigation measures are required as a part of the project’s implementation 

Additionally, the project area is not an area with active mineral extraction activities.  As a result, no 

impacts on existing mineral resources will result from the proposed project’s implementation. 

B. Would the project result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery 

site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? ● No Impact.  

As mentioned earlier, two former oil wells are located within the project site, approximately 50 feet away 

from the project site’s southern boundary line.72  The City of Santa Fe Springs Department of Fire and 

Rescue has addressed the issue and determined that no action is required on behalf of the project 

applicant and that no mitigation measures are required as a part of the project’s implementation.  

Additionally, the resources and materials that will be utilized for site improvements for the proposed 

project will not include any materials that are considered rare or unique.  Thus, the proposed project will 

not result in any impacts on mineral resources in the region.   

3.11.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The potential impacts on mineral resources are site-specific.  Furthermore, the analysis determined that 

the proposed project would not result in any impacts on mineral resources.  As a result, no cumulative 

impacts will occur.  

                                                 
71 California Department of Conservation.  Division of Oil, Gas & Geothermal Resources Well Finder.  

http://maps.conservation.ca.gov/doggr/index.html#close.  Website accessed October 18, 2017. 
 
72 Ibid. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 73 

3.11.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of potential impacts related to mineral resources indicated that no impacts would result from 
the proposed project’s implementation.  As a result, no mitigation measures are required.   

3.12 NOISE  

3.12.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on noise if it results in any of the following: 

● The exposure of persons to, or generation of, noise levels in excess of standards established in the 

local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies; 

● The exposure of people to, or the generation of, excessive groundborne noise levels; 

● A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 

existing without the project; 

● A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above 

levels existing without the project; 

● The exposure of people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels for a 

project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 

two miles of a public airport or public use airport; or, 

● The exposure of people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels for a 

project within the vicinity of a private airstrip. 

3.12.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project result in exposure of persons to, or generation of, noise levels in excess of 

standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other 

agencies? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

Noise levels may be described using a number of methods designed to evaluate the “loudness” of a 

particular noise.  The most commonly used unit for measuring the level of sound is the decibel (dB).  Zero 

on the decibel scale represents the lowest limit of sound that can be heard by humans.  The eardrum may 

rupture at 140 dB.  In general, an increase of between 3.0 dB and 5.0 dB in the ambient noise level is 

considered to represent the threshold for human sensitivity.  In other words, increases in ambient noise 

levels of 3.0 dB or less are not generally perceptible to persons with average hearing abilities.73  Noise 

levels that are associated with common, everyday activities are illustrated in Exhibit 3-8.  The 

implementation of the proposed project will not expose future employees and patrons to excessive noise  

                                                 
73 Bugliarello, et. al.  The Impact of Noise Pollution, Chapter 127, 1975. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 74 

 

 

 165   
160   
155   
150   

 145   
140  sonic boom 

135   

130   

125  jet take off at 200 ft. 

120   

 115  music in night club interior 

110  motorcycle at 20 ft. 

105  power mower 

100   

95  freight train at 50 ft. 

90  food blender 

 85  electric mixer, light rail train horn 

80   

75   

70  portable fan, roadway traffic at 50 ft. 

65   

60  dishwasher, air conditioner 

55   

50  normal conversation 

45  refrigerator, light traffic at 100 ft. 

40   

35  library interior (quiet study area) 

30   

 25   

20   

15   

10  rustling leaves  

5   

0   
 

 

Serious 
Injury 

Pain 

Discomfort 

Range of 
Typical 

Noise 
Levels 

Threshold 
of 

Hearing 

EXHIBIT 3-8 
TYPICAL NOISE SOURCES AND LOUDNESS SCALE  

Source: Blodgett Baylosis Environmental Planning 

Noise Levels – in dBA 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 75 

because the use of the proposed development will not be a noise sensitive receptor.  In addition, the future 

tenants will be located in a Heavy Manufacturing (M-2) zone and will be required to adhere to all 

pertinent noise control regulations outlined by the City of Santa Fe Springs.  As a result, the potential 

impacts will be less than significant.  

Noise levels may be described using a number of methods designed to evaluate the “loudness” of a 

particular noise.  The most commonly used unit for measuring the level of sound is the decibel (dB).  Zero 

on the decibel scale represents the lowest limit of sound that can be heard by humans.  The eardrum may 

rupture at 140 dB.  An increase of between 3.0 dB and 5.0 dB is the ambient noise level considered to 

represent the threshold for human sensitivity.  Noise levels associated with everyday activities are 

illustrated in Exhibit 3-8.  The City of Santa Fe Springs Municipal Code has established the following 

noise control standards for industrial development within the M-1 or M-2 zone: 70 dBA between 7:00 AM 

to 10:00 PM and 70 dBA between 10:00 PM to 7:00 AM.74 

City noise standards are not to be exceeded by 5 dBA for a cumulative period of 15 minutes in any hour, by 

10 dBA for a cumulative period of five minutes in any hour, by 15 dBA for a cumulative period of one 

minute in any hour, or by 20 dBA for any period of time (less than one minute in an hour).  On-site 

improvements will include the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the 

installation of a 75-foot wide by 112-foot long outdoor artificial turf field and the installation of additional 

landscaping.  Therefore, construction equipment such as breakers, concrete saws, and grading equipment 

will be used.  The City has a provision that does not allow any person within 500 feet of a residential zone 

to operate any equipment or perform any outside construction or repair work on buildings between the 

hours of 7:00 PM of one day and 7:00 AM of the next day.75  As previously mentioned, a single-family 

residential neighborhood is located approximately 650 feet north of the project site within South Whittier.  

Therefore, the abovementioned provision related to construction will not apply to the proposed project.   

A change in traffic noise levels of between 3.0 dBA and 5.0 dBA is generally considered to be the limit 

where the change in the ambient noise levels may be perceived by persons with normal hearing.  It 

typically requires a doubling of traffic volumes to register a perceptible change (increase) in traffic noise.  

As indicated in Section 3.16, the proposed project is anticipated to generate approximately 120 daily trips, 

with three trips occurring during the AM peak hour, and three trips occurring during the PM peak hour.  

The existing average daily traffic volumes along Los Nietos Road are 10,000 to 20,000 trips per day.  

Therefore, the proposed project’s traffic generation will not result in a doubling of traffic volumes.  As a 

result, less than significant impacts will occur. 

B. Would the project result in exposure of people to, or the generation of, excessive groundborne noise 

levels? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

On-site improvements will include the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and 

parking, the installation of a 75-foot wide by 112-foot long outdoor artificial turf field, and the installation 

of additional landscaping.  Therefore, construction equipment such as breakers, concrete saws, and 

grading equipment will be used.  The nearest land use that may potentially be impacted by ground-borne 

                                                 
74 Santa Fe Springs, City of.  Municipal Code.  Title XV Land Usage, Chapter 155 Zoning, Section 155.424. 
 
75 Ibid (Section 155.425). 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 76 

vibration and noise (primarily from the use of heavy construction equipment) is the single-family 

residential neighborhood located approximately 650 feet north of the project site.  As noted in Subsection 

3.12.2.D, the noisiest phases of construction are anticipated to be 89 dBA as measured at a distance of 50 

feet from the construction activity.  The construction noise levels will decline as one shifts further away 

from the noise source.  This effect is known as spreading loss.  In general, the noise level adjustment that 

takes the spreading loss into account calls for a 6.0 dBA reduction for every doubling of the distance 

beginning with the initial 50-foot distance.  Therefore, the highest noise level to reach the residential 

neighborhood to the north is approximately 60 dBA.   

Construction (site improvement) activities will be in compliance with City noise standards.  The City has a 

provision that does not allow any person within 500 feet of a residential zone to operate any equipment or 

perform any outside construction or repair work on buildings between the hours of 7:00 PM of one day 

and 7:00 AM of the next day.76  As previously mentioned, a single-family residential neighborhood is 

located approximately 650 feet north of the project site within South Whittier.  Therefore, the 

abovementioned provision related to construction will not apply to the proposed project.  Furthermore, 

the proposed on-site improvements will not require extensive excavation and therefore will not cause 

extensive groundborne noise.  As a result, the potential groundborne noise impacts are considered to be 

less than significant.  

C. Would the project result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project 

vicinity above levels existing without the project? ● Less Than Significant Impact.   

The proposed project’s traffic generation will lead to a slight increase in the ambient traffic noise levels 

along the adjoining roadway (Los Nietos Road), though the anticipated increase will not be significant 

enough to result in a perceptible increase of the ambient noise levels.  A change in traffic noise levels of 

between 3.0 dBA and 5.0 dBA is generally considered to be the limit where the change in the ambient 

noise levels may be perceived by persons with normal hearing.  It typically requires a doubling of traffic 

volumes to register a perceptible change (increase) in traffic noise.  The average daily traffic volumes 

along Los Nietos Road range in between 10,000 and 20,000 average daily trips (ADT).77  The proposed 

project will result in 120 ADT, which represents an increase in traffic volumes of far less than the double.  

The proposed project is anticipated to generate approximately three AM peak hour trips and three PM 

peak hour trips.  The proposed project’s traffic generation will not result in a doubling of traffic volumes.   

In addition, the proposed uses will be required to comply with the City noise standards, which are 

outlined in Section 3.12.2.A herein.  The proposed project will involve a soccer facility use.  Ballmaster 

Elite Soccer Academy is proposing to operate Monday through Thursday, 9:00 AM to 11:00 PM and 

Friday through Sunday, 7:00 AM to 11:00 PM.  The majority of the activities will be enclosed within the 

two existing buildings.  In addition, the project site is located within an industrial area and not in the 

vicinity of any sensitive receptors.  As a result, the potential noise impacts are considered to be less than 

significant.  

                                                 
76 Santa Fe Springs, City of.  Municipal Code.  Title XV Land Usage, Chapter 155 Zoning, Section 155.425. 
 
77 City of Santa Fe Springs. Traffic Volume ADT Count Map 2009 Santa Fe Springs Citywide. July 3, 2009.  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 77 

D. Would the project result in a substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in 

the project vicinity above levels existing without the project? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

Noise levels associated with various types of construction equipment are summarized in Exhibit 3-9.  The 

noise levels are those that would be expected at a distance of 50 feet from the noise source.  Composite 

construction noise is best characterized in a study prepared by Bolt, Beranek, and Newman.  In the study, 

the noisiest phases of construction are anticipated to be 89 dBA as measured at a distance of 50 feet from 

the construction activity.  As indicated previously, the nearest noise sensitive receptor is the single-family 

residential neighborhood located 650 feet north from the project site.  Therefore, the highest noise level to 

reach the residential neighborhood to the north is approximately 60 dBA.   

Construction (site improvement) activities will be in compliance with City noise standards.  The City has a 

provision that does not allow any person within 500 feet of a residential zone to operate any equipment or 

perform any outside construction or repair work on buildings between the hours of 7:00 PM of one day 

and 7:00 AM of the next day.78  As previously mentioned, a single-family residential neighborhood is 

located approximately 650 feet north of the project site within South Whittier.  Therefore, the 

abovementioned provision related to construction will not apply to the proposed project.  Furthermore, 

the proposed on-site improvements will not require extensive excavation and therefore will not cause 

extensive noise.  In addition, the uses that immediately surround the project site are industrial and are 

not considered to be noise sensitive receptors.  As a result, the impacts are anticipated to be less than 

significant.   

E. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 

within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing 

or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? ● No Impact. 

The project site is not located within two miles of a public airport or public use airport.  Fullerton Airport 

is located approximately 6.28 miles southeast of the project site and the Long Beach Airport is located 

approximately 9.80 miles to the southwest.79  As a result, the project will not expose people working in the 

project area to excessive noise levels and no impacts will occur.  

F. For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project expose people residing or 

working in the project area to excessive noise levels? ● No Impact. 

The nearest private heliport is located 1.30 miles east of the project site (Presbyterian Intercommunity 

Hospital Heliport).80  Due to the project site’s distance from the private heliport, the proposed project will 

not expose people working in the project area to excessive noise levels and no impacts will occur. 

 

  
                                                 
78 Santa Fe Springs, City of.  Municipal Code.  Title XV Land Usage, Chapter 155 Zoning, Section 155.425. 
 
79 Toll-Free Airline. Los Angeles County Public and Private Airports, California.  

http://www.tollfreeairline.com/california/losangeles.htm.  
 
80 Ibid. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 78 

 

 

 

        
        
  Compactors (Rollers)      

Front Loaders      

Backhoes      

Tractors      

Scrapers, Graders      

Pavers      

Trucks      

 Concrete Mixers      

Concrete Pumps      

Cranes (Movable)      

Cranes (Derrick)      

 Pumps      

Generators      

Compressors      

 Pneumatic Wrenches      

Jack Hammers      

Pile Drivers       

 Vibrators      

Saws      

 

 

 

  

Impact  
Equipment 

E
a

rt
h

 M
o

v
in

g
 

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 

70 80 90 100 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
H

a
n

d
li

n
g

  
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

Other 
Equipment 

S
ta

ti
o

n
a

ry
 

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
P

o
w

er
ed

 b
y

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 

C
o

m
b

u
st

io
n

 E
n

g
in

es
 

Typical noise levels 50 ft. from source 

EXHIBIT 3-9 
TYPICAL CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVELS  

Source: Blodgett Baylosis Environmental Planning 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 79 

3.12.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis indicated that the proposed project would not result in any significant adverse noise impacts.  

As a result, no cumulative noise impacts will occur with the implementation of the proposed project. 

3.12.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis indicated that the proposed project would not result in any significant adverse noise impacts.  
Therefore, no mitigation measures were provided.   

3.13 POPULATION AND HOUSING  

3.13.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on population and housing if it results in any of the following: 

● A substantial population growth in an area, either directly or indirectly; 

● The displacement of substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of 

replacement housing elsewhere; or, 

● The displacement of substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement 

housing elsewhere. 

3.13.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (e.g., by 

proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (e.g., through extension of roads or other 

infrastructure)? ● Less Than Significant Impact.  

The project site is currently occupied by two industrial buildings and concrete- and asphalt-paved 

surfaces.  The proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the 

demolition or construction of any buildings.  On-site improvements proposed as part of the project 

involve the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the installation an 

outdoor turf field, and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which already exists.  

Growth-inducing impacts are generally associated with the provision of urban services to an undeveloped 

or rural area.  The variables that typically contribute to growth-inducing impacts, and the project’s 

potential growth-inducing impacts, are identified in Table 3-6.  

Table 3-6 
Potential Growth-Inducing Impacts 

Factor Contributing to Growth Inducement Project’s Potential Contribution 

New development in an area presently undeveloped. The proposed project will develop a previously utilized parcel. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 80 

Table 3-6 
Potential Growth-Inducing Impacts 

Extension of roadways and other transportation 
facilities. 

The project will not involve the extension or modification of any 
off-site roadways.   

Extension of infrastructure and other improvements. No off-site water, sewer, and other infrastructure are 
anticipated.   

Major off-site public projects (treatment plants, etc). No new facilities are proposed.   

Removal of housing requiring replacement housing 
elsewhere. 

The project does not involve the removal of existing housing.  

Additional population growth leading to increased 
demand for services. 

Any potential population growth will be related to employment 
growth and will be minimal and incremental. 

Short-term growth inducing impacts related to the 
project’s construction. 

The proposed project may result in the creation of new 
construction employment. 

As indicated in Table 3-6, the proposed development would not result in any direct growth-inducing 

impacts related to potential population growth.  Any potential population growth will be indirect and will 

result from permanent employment growth.  According to the State of California Employment 

Development Department, the City’s current unemployment rate is 5.8 percent, which means there are up 

to 500 residents actively seeking work.81  According to the applicant, a total of four new jobs will be 

created upon the implementation of the proposed project.  The projected number of new jobs is well 

within SCAG’s employment projections for the City of Santa Fe Springs (refer to Section 3.3.2.A).  As a 

result, less than significant impacts are anticipated to occur.   

B. Would the project displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of 

replacement housing elsewhere? ● No Impact. 

The proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the demolition or 

construction of any buildings.  In addition, the site is zoned M-2 for Heavy Manufacturing and the site’s 

General Plan land use designation is Industrial (refer to Section 3.10.2.A).  No housing units will be 

displaced as a result of the proposed project and as a result, no impacts related to housing displacement 

will occur.   

C. Would the project displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of 

replacement housing elsewhere? ● No Impact. 

As indicated previously, the proposed project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not 

involve the demolition or construction of any buildings; therefore, no housing units will be affected.  As a 

result, no displacement of residents will result.  Thus, no impacts related to population displacement will 

result from the proposed project’s implementation. 

3.13.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis of potential population and housing impacts indicated that no impacts would result from the 

proposed project’s implementation.  As a result, no cumulative impacts will occur.  

                                                 
81 State of California Employment Development Department. Current Month Unemployment Rate and Labor Force Summary.  

http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/data/unemployment-and-labor-force.html.  Website accessed November 1, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 81 

3.13.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of potential population and housing impacts indicated that no impacts would result from the 

proposed project’s approval and subsequent implementation and no mitigation measures are required.   

3.14 PUBLIC SERVICES  

3.14.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on public services if it results in any of the following: 

● Substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered 

governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant environmental impacts, 

in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives 

relative to fire protection services; 

● Substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered 

governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant environmental impacts, 

in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives 

relative to police protection services; 

● Substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered 

governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant environmental impacts, 

in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives 

relative to school services; or, 

● Substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered 

governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant environmental impacts, 

in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives 

relative to other governmental services. 

3.14.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS  

A. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of 

new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant 

environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other 

performance objectives relative to fire protection services? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

The City of Santa Fe Springs Fire Department provides fire prevention and emergency medical services 

within the City.  The department consists of three separate divisions: Operations, Fire Prevention, and 

Environmental Protection.  The Operations Division provides fire suppression, emergency medical 

services (EMS), hazardous materials response, and urban search and rescue.  The Fire Prevention 

Division provides plan check, inspections, and public education.  Finally, the Environmental Protection 

Division is responsible for responding to emergencies involving hazardous materials.  The Fire 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 82 

Department operates from four stations: Station No. 1 (11300 Greenstone Avenue), Station No. 2 (8634 

Dice Road), Station No. 3 (15517 Carmenita Road), and Station No. 4 (11736 Telegraph Road).  The first 

response station to the site is station No. 1.  The Fire Department currently reviews all new 

development plans, and future development will be required to conform to all fire protection and 

prevention requirements, including, but not limited to, building setbacks and emergency access.  The 

proposed project would only place an incremental demand on fire services since the project will be in 

operation within a previously developed site.  Compliance with all pertinent codes and ordinances 

would reduce the impacts to levels that are less than significant. 

B. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of 

new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant 

environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other 

performance objectives relative to police protection services? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

The City of Santa Fe Springs Department of Police Services (DPS) is responsible for management of all 

law enforcement services within the City.  The DPS is staffed by both City personnel and officers from the 

City of Whittier Police Department (WPD) that provide contract law enforcement services to Santa Fe 

Springs.  The police services contract between the two cities provides for a specified number of WPD 

patrolling officers though the DPS has the ability to request an increased level of service.  WPD law 

enforcement personnel assigned to the City includes 35 sworn officers and six support personnel.82  The 

proposed project would only place an incremental demand on police protection services since the project 

is not anticipated to be an attractor for crime due to the lack of unsecure vacant space.  In addition, 

security cameras will be located on-site and two wrought iron gates are located at both on-site driveways.  

To ensure the proposed project elements adhere to the City’s security requirements, the City of Santa Fe 

Springs Department of Police Services will review the site plan for the proposed project to ensure that the 

development adheres to the Department requirements.  Adherence to the abovementioned requirement 

will reduce potential impacts to levels that are less than significant.   

C. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of 

new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant 

environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other 

performance objectives relative to school services? ● Less than Significant Impact. 

Due to the nature of the proposed project, no direct enrollment impacts regarding school services will 

occur.  The proposed project will not directly increase demand for school services.  Any potential 

population growth that would lead to an increase in demand for school services will be indirect and will 

result from permanent employment growth.  As a result, less than significant school-related impacts are 

anticipated to occur.   

 

 

                                                 
82 City of Whittier.  Santa Fe Springs Policing Team.  http://www.cityofwhittier.org/depts/police/sfs/default.asp.  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 83 

D. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of 

new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which would cause significant 

environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other 

performance objectives relative to other governmental services? ● Less Than Significant Impact.   

No new governmental services will be needed, and the proposed project is not expected to have any 

impact on existing governmental services.  The proposed project will not directly increase demand for 

governmental services.  As a result, less than significant impacts are anticipated.   

3.14.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The limited on-site development contemplated as part of the proposed project’s implementation will not 

result in a significant incremental increase in the demand for public services.  As a result, no cumulative 

impacts are anticipated.   

3.14.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of public service impacts indicated that no significant adverse impacts are anticipated; 

however, to ensure the proposed project meets the City’s fire and police department standards, the 

proposed project is required by the City to undergo review by the City’s fire department and police 

department.  Mitigation measures are not recommended herein. 

3.15 RECREATION  

3.15.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on recreation if it results in any of the following: 

● An increase in the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities 

such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated; or,  

● The inclusion of recreational facilities or the construction or expansion of recreational facilities 

which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment. 

3.15.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other 

recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be 

accelerated? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

Due to the nature of the proposed project, no significant increase in the usage of City parks and 

recreational facilities is anticipated to occur.  The nearest park to the project site is York Field, which is 

located approximately 0.75 miles to the northwest.  The proposed use would not result in any direct 

recreational services impacts related to potential population growth.  Any potential population growth will 

be indirect and will result from permanent employment growth.  According to the applicant, a total of four 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 84 

new jobs will be created upon the implementation of the proposed project.  This number of new jobs is 

well within SCAG’s employment projections for the City of Santa Fe Springs (refer to Section 3.3.2.A).  As 

a result, the impacts will be less than significant.   

B. Would the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of 

recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? ● No 

Impact. 

The proposed project does not involve recreational facilities or the construction or expansion of 

recreational facilities.  In addition, the proposed project would not result in any development that would 

potentially significantly increase the demand for recreational facilities and services.  As a result, no 

impacts are anticipated. 

3.15.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis determined that the proposed project would not result in any significant impact on 

recreational facilities and services.  As a result, no cumulative impacts on recreational facilities would 

result from the proposed project’s implementation.   

3.15.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of potential impacts related to parks and recreation indicated that no significant adverse 

impacts would result from the proposed project’s approval and subsequent implementation.  As a result, 

no mitigation measures are required.   

3.16 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION  

3.16.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on transportation and circulation if it results in any of the following: 

● A conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of effectiveness for 

the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of transportation 

including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant components of the circulation 

system, including, but not limited to, intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian 

and bicycle paths, and mass transit; 

● A conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not limited to, level 

of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established by the county 

congestion management agency for designated roads or highways; 

● A change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in the 

location that results in substantial safety risks;  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 85 

● A substantially increase in hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 

intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment); 

● Inadequate emergency access; or,   

● A conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or 

pedestrian facilities, or a decrease in the performance or safety of such facilities. 

3.16.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of 

effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of 

transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant components of the 

circulation system, including, but not limited to, intersections, streets, highways and freeways, 

pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

In order to assess future operating conditions both with and without the proposed project, existing traffic 

conditions within the study area were evaluated.  Major east-west regional access to the site is provided by 

Los Nietos Road.  Major north-south regional access is provided by Painter Avenue.  Access to the 

proposed project will be provided by two existing driveways located along Los Nietos Road.  Los Nietos 

Road is a major collector street, extending from northwesterly to southeasterly direction.  The roadway is 

60 feet wide from curb-to-curb and striped for one lane in each direction plus a two-way-turn-lane along 

the center.  The major intersections along the street, including the intersection of Los Nietos Road and 

Painter Avenue located approximately 410 feet to the east of the site, are signalized.  Parking is permitted 

along both sides of the street.  At the intersection of Painter Avenue, Los Nietos Drive is striped for two 

lanes in each direction plus a left-turn lane on both approaches.  The street is posted with 40 miles per 

hour speed limit signs.83 

In order to accurately assess future traffic conditions with the proposed project, trip generation estimates 

were developed for the project.  Trip generation rates for most of the land uses are based on the nationally 

recognized recommendations contained in “Trip Generation” manual, 9th edition, published by the 

Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE).  However, due to this project’s unique operational 

characteristics, trip generation during the peak hours by the project should be based on operational 

schedule and number of people attending each session of training.  The proposed operational plan shows 

that the prime hours of the operation of the facility will be from 5:00 PM to 9:00 PM Monday through 

Friday, and 9:00 AM to 7:00 PM Saturday and Sunday.  A receptionist will be located on-site from 8:00 

AM to 5:00 PM Monday through Friday and will be answering the phone and performing other 

administrative duties.  A total of three trainers will arrive at 4:00 PM to prepare for 1.5-hour training 

sessions.  The trainers will also serve as referees.  

The first session for training will start at 5:00 PM and will end at 6:30 PM.  The second session will start 

immediately after the first session and so forth.  Approximately 60 people, including children, parents, 

and spectators, will participate in each session (with two sessions occurring every evening).  The 

                                                 
83 Crown City Engineers, Inc.  Traffic Letter Report, Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy, 13045 Los Nietos Road, Santa Fe Springs, 

California.  August 31, 2017. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 86 

participants will carpool or be dropped-off and picked-up.  Therefore, on average the ridership can be 

assumed to be two persons per vehicle.  Due to the operation schedule, the maximum traffic generation 

will occur around 6:30 PM when the participants of the first session will depart and the participants of the 

session will arrive.  Therefore, with two persons per vehicle, there will be 30 vehicles arriving and 30 

vehicles departing under the worst-case scenario during this peak hour (with a total of 60 vehicle trips per 

session and 120 trips total per evening for the two sessions).84 

In comparison, the existing on-site warehouse use is estimated to generate a total of three vehicular trips 

(one inbound, two outbound) during the PM peak hours, and a total of three vehicular trips (two inbound, 

one outbound) during the AM peak hours, per trip generation rates based on the nationally recognized 

recommendations contained in “Trip Generation” manual, 9th edition, published by the Institute of 

Transportation Engineers (ITE).  

It can be assumed that approximately 50 percent of traffic will be departing and arriving to and from the 

west and 50 percent of traffic will be departing and arriving to and from the east.  At the intersection of 

Los Nietos Avenue Road and Painter Avenue, 25 percent of traffic will travel further to and from east and 

other 25 percent will be equally distributed along Painter Avenue in the north and the south direction.  

Therefore, during the peak hour at the driveway of the project, 15 vehicles will enter from the east by 

right-turns and 15 vehicles will enter from west by left-turns; 15 vehicles will exit to the east by left-turns 

and 15 vehicles will exit to the west by right-turns.  Since these maneuvers will be occurring during the 

entire hour, one such maneuver will occur at each four-minute interval.  This will not have any significant 

impact on the existing traffic conditions on Los Nietos Road.  Based on the above analysis, it can be 

concluded that the proposed development and operation of the soccer facility will not have any significant 

traffic impact on the traffic circulation and parking conditions in the surrounding circulation system.85 

B. Would the project conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not 

limited to, level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established by 

the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways? ● No Impact. 

The County of Los Angeles is included in the Los Angeles County Congestion Management Program 

(CMP), which is prepared and maintained by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 

Authority (Metro).  The requirements of the CMP became effective with voter approval of Proposition 111. 

The purpose of the CMP is to link land use, transportation, and air quality decisions to develop a 

partnership among transportation decision-makers in devising appropriate transportation solutions that 

include all modes of travel and to propose transportation projects that are eligible to compete for State gas 

tax funds. 

The CMP also serves to consistently track trends during peak traffic hours at major intersections in the 

Country and identify areas in great need of improvements where traffic congestion is worsening.  The 

CMP requires that intersections which are designated as being officially monitored by the Program be 

analyzed under the County’s CMP criteria if the proposed project is expected to generate 50 or more peak 

hour trips on a CMP-designated facility.   

                                                 
84 Crown City Engineers, Inc.  Traffic Letter Report, Ballmaster Elite Soccer Academy, 13045 Los Nietos Road, Santa Fe Springs, 

California.  August 31, 2017. 
 
85 Ibid. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 87 

Due to the operation schedule, the maximum traffic generation will occur around 6:30 PM when the 

participants of the first session will depart and the participants of the session will arrive.  Therefore, with 

two persons per vehicle, there will be 30 vehicles arriving and 30 vehicles departing under the worst-case 

scenario during this peak hour.  It can be assumed that approximately 50 percent of traffic will be 

departing and arriving to and from the west and 50 percent of traffic will be departing and arriving to and 

from the east.  Based on the above analysis, it can be concluded that the proposed development and 

operation of the soccer facility will not impact any nearby CMP arterial roadway or intersection. 

C. Would the project result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic 

levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks? ● No Impact.  

The proposed project will not result in any changes in air traffic patterns.  As a result, no impacts will 

occur with the implementation of the proposed project. 

D. Would the project substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 

dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? ● No  Impact. 

Vehicular access to the proposed project is currently provided by two existing 21-foot wide and 17-foot 

wide driveways along Los Nietos Road.  Both driveways will remain and no new driveways of other 

improvements are proposed as part of the project.  The existing streets would remain unchanged.  As a 

result, no impacts will occur.   

E. Would the project result in inadequate emergency access? ● No Impact. 

The proposed project will not affect emergency access to the project site or to any adjacent parcels.  At no 

time will any local streets or parcels be closed to traffic.  In addition, the Fire Department will review the 

project site plans and the project will be required to conform to all fire protection and prevention 

requirements, including, but not limited to, building setbacks and emergency access.  As a result, no 

impacts will result upon the proposed project’s implementation.   

F. Would the project conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, 

bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? ● 

No Impact. 

The proposed project involves a soccer facility use within an industrial area.  No conflict with adopted 

policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities will exist upon the 

implementation of the proposed project.  No existing bus stops will be removed as part of the proposed 

project’s implementation.  As a result, the proposed project’s implementation will not result in any 

adverse impacts. 

3.16.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The future development contemplated as part of the proposed project’s implementation will not result in 

a significant increase in traffic generation in the area.  As a result, no cumulative impacts are anticipated.   



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 88 

3.16.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of potential impacts related to traffic and circulation indicated that no significant impacts 

would result from the proposed project’s approval and subsequent implementation.  As a result, no 

mitigation measures are required.  

3.17 TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 

3.17.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on tribal cultural resources if it results in any of the following: 

●  A substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public 

Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is 

geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with 

cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is listed or eligible for listing in the 

California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined 

in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k); or, 

● A substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public 

Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is 

geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with 

cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is a resource determined by the lead 

agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to 

criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. 

3.17.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural 

resource, defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural 

landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred 

place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is listed or 

eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of 

historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k)? ● Less Than Significant 

Impact. 

A Tribal Resource is defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 and includes the following: 

● Sites, features, places, cultural landscapes, sacred places, and objects with cultural value to a 

California Native American tribe that are either of the following: included or determined to be 

eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources or included in a local 

register of historical resources as defined in subdivision (k) of Section 5020.1. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 89 

● A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, 

to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Section 5024.1.  In applying the 

criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Section 5024.1 for the purposes of this paragraph, the lead 

agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe. 

● A cultural landscape that meets the criteria of subdivision (a) is a tribal cultural resource to the 

extent that the landscape is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape. 

● A historical resource described in Section 21084.1, a unique archaeological resource as defined in 

subdivision (g) of Section 21083.2, or a “non-unique archaeological resource” as defined in 

subdivision (h) of Section 21083.2 may also be a tribal cultural resource if it conforms with the 

criteria of subdivision (a). 

The project site is located within the cultural area that was formerly occupied by the Gabrielino-Kizh.  The 

project site is located within an urbanized area of the City that has been disturbed due to past 

development and there is a limited likelihood that artifacts will be encountered.  The project site is 

currently occupied by two industrial buildings and concrete- and asphalt-paved surfaces.  The proposed 

project involves the operation of a soccer facility and will not involve the demolition or construction of any 

buildings.  On-site improvements will include the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of 

travel and parking, the installation of the outdoor turf field, and the installation of additional landscaping 

beyond that which already exists.  Therefore, the installation of the proposed on-site improvements will 

not result in extensive excavation.   

In addition, the project area is not located within an area that is typically associated with habitation sites, 

foraging areas, ceremonial sites, or burials.  Nevertheless, mitigation was provided in Section 3.5.2.B 

herein.  With the implementation of this mitigation measure, tribal cultural impacts will be reduced to 

levels that are considered to be less than significant.   

B. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural 

resource, defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural 

landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred 

place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is a resource 

determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be 

significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1?  

In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead 

agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe. ● Less 

Than Significant Impact.  

As previously mentioned, the project site is located within the cultural area that was formally occupied by 

the Gabrielino-Kizh and it was determined that the site may be situated in an area of high archaeological 

significance.  The project site is located within an urbanized area of the City that has been disturbed due 

to past development and there is a limited likelihood that artifacts will be encountered.  On-site 

improvements will include the re-grading and re-paving of the accessible paths of travel and parking, the 

installation of the outdoor turf field, and the installation of additional landscaping beyond that which 

already exists.  Therefore, the installation of the proposed on-site improvements will not result in 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 90 

extensive excavation.  In addition, the project area is not located within an area that is typically associated 

with habitation sites, foraging areas, ceremonial sites, or burials.  Nevertheless, mitigation was provided 

in Section 3.5.2.B herein.  With the implementation of this mitigation measure, tribal cultural impacts will 

be reduced to levels that are considered to be less than significant.   

3.17.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis determined that the potential impacts related to tribal cultural resources are considered to be 

less than significant.  As a result, no significant cumulative impacts will occur as part of the 

implementation of the proposed project.   

3.17.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of tribal cultural resources indicated that no significant impacts would result with the 

implementation of the mitigation measure provided in Section 3.5.2.B.  As a result, no mitigation is 

required. 

3.18 UTILITIES  

3.18.1 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

According to the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as Lead Agency, a project may be deemed to have a 

significant adverse impact on utilities if it results in any of the following:  

● An exceedance of the wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water 

Quality Control Board; 

● The construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing 

facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects; 

● The construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the 

construction of which could cause significant environmental effects;   

● Insufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and resources, 

or in new or expanded entitlements;  

● A determination by the wastewater treatment provider that serves or may serve the project that it 

has inadequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in addition to the provider’s 

existing commitments; 

● Insufficient permitted capacity by the landfill provider to accommodate the project’s solid waste 

disposal needs; or 

● Non-compliance with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 91 

3.18.2 ANALYSIS OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

A. Would the project exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water 

Quality Control Board? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

The City of Santa Fe Springs is located within the service area of the Sanitation District 2 of Los Angeles 

County.  The nearest wastewater treatment plant to Santa Fe Springs is the Los Coyotes Water 

Reclamation Plant (WRP) located in Cerritos.  The Los Coyotes WRP is located at 16515 Piuma Avenue in 

the City of Cerritos and occupies 34 acres at the northwest junction of the San Gabriel River (I-605) and 

the Artesia (SR-91) Freeways.  The plant was placed in operation on May 25, 1970 and initially had a 

capacity of 12.5 million gallons per day and consisted of primary treatment and secondary treatment with 

activated sludge.  The Los Coyotes WRP provides primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment for 37.5 

million gallons of wastewater per day.  The plant serves a population of approximately 370,000 people.  

Over five million gallons per day of the reclaimed water is reused at over 270 reuse sites.  Reuse includes 

landscape irrigation of schools, golf courses, parks, nurseries, and greenbelts; and industrial use at local 

companies for carpet dying and concrete mixing.  The remainder of the effluent is discharged to the San 

Gabriel River.  The Los Coyotes WRP has a treatment capacity of 350 million gallons of wastewater per 

day and serves a population of approximately 3.5 million people.  Treated wastewater is disinfected with 

chlorine and conveyed to the Pacific Ocean.  The reclamation projects utilize pump stations from the two 

largest Sanitation Districts’ Water Reclamation plants includes the San Jose Creek WRP in Whittier and 

Los Coyotes WRP in Cerritos.86   

The Los Coyotes WRP has a design capacity of 37.5 million gallons per day (mgd) and currently processes 

an average flow of 31.8 mgd.  The Joint Water Pollution Control Plant (JWPCP) located in the City of 

Carson has a design capacity of 385 mgd and currently processes an average flow of 326.1 mgd.  The Long 

Beach WRP has a design capacity of 25 mgd and currently processes an average flow of 20.2 mgd.  The 

proposed soccer facility use is projected to generate 746 gallons of effluent on a daily basis which is well 

under the capacity of the aforementioned WRPs.87  No new or expanded sewage and/or water treatment 

facilities will be required to accommodate the proposed project and as a result, the impacts are expected 

to be less than significant.   

B. Would the project require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment 

facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 

environmental impacts? ● No Impact. 

Water in the local area is supplied by the Santa Fe Springs Water Utility Authority (SFSWUA).  Water is 

derived from two sources: groundwater and surface water.  The SFSWUA pumps groundwater from the 

local well and disinfects this water with chlorine before distributing it to customers.  SFSWUA also 

obtains treated and disinfected groundwater through the City of Whittier from eight active deep wells 

located in the Whittier Narrows area.  In addition, SFSWUA receives treated groundwater from the 

Central Basin Water Quality Protection Program facility located in the Central Basin, through the City of 

Whittier.  Lastly, the SFSWUA also receives Metropolitan Water District of Southern California’s (MWD) 

                                                 
86 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts.  

http://www.lacsd.org/wastewater/wwfacilities/joint_outfall_system_wrp/los_coyotes.asp. 
 
87 The utility worksheets are included in Appendix C. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 92 

filtered and disinfected surface water, which is a blend of water from both the Colorado River and the 

State Water Project in Northern California.  The proposed project is projected to consume approximately 

932 gallons of water on a daily basis.  The existing water supply facilities and infrastructure will 

accommodate this additional demand.   

As indicated in the previous section, the proposed project will generate approximately 746 gallons of 

wastewater a day.  The future wastewater generation will be within the treatment capacity of the Los 

Coyotes and Long Beach WRP.  Therefore, no new water and wastewater treatment facilities will be 

needed to accommodate the excess effluent generated by the proposed project and no impacts are 

anticipated to occur.   

C. Would the project require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or 

expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental 

effects? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

The County of Los Angeles, acting as the Los Angeles County Flood Control District (LACFCD), has the 

regional, County-wide flood control responsibility.  LACFCD responsibilities include planning for 

developing and maintaining flood control facilities of regional significance which serve large drainage 

areas.  The proposed project will be required to comply with all pertinent Federal Clean Water Act 

requirements.  The site proposes re-graded and re-paved internal roadways and hardscape areas that will 

be subject to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the Regional 

Water Quality Control Board.  The project will also be required to comply with the City's storm water 

management guidelines.  As a result, no new or expanded stormwater drainage facilities will be required 

and no impacts will occur.  

D. Would the project have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing 

entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? ● Less Than Significant 

Impact. 

As previously mentioned, water in the local area is supplied by the Santa Fe Springs Water Utility 

Authority (SFSWUA).  Water is derived from two sources: groundwater and surface water.  The SFSWUA 

pumps groundwater from the local well and disinfects this water with chlorine before distributing it to 

customers.  SFSWUA also obtains treated and disinfected groundwater through the City of Whittier from 

eight active deep wells located in the Whittier Narrows area.  In addition, SFSWUA receives treated 

groundwater from the Central Basin Water Quality Protection Program facility located in the Central 

Basin, through the City of Whittier.  Lastly, the SFSWUA also receives Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California’s (MWD) filtered and disinfected surface water, which is a blend of water from both 

the Colorado River and the State Water Project in Northern California.  As previously indicated, the 

proposed project is projected to consume approximately 932 gallons of water on a daily basis.  The 

existing water supply facilities and infrastructure will accommodate this additional demand.  As a result, 

the impacts are considered to be less than significant. 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 93 

E. Would the project result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider that serves or 

may serve the project that it has inadequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in 

addition to the provider’s existing commitments? ● No Impact. 

As previously mentioned, the proposed project is anticipated to produce 746 gallons of effluent 

(wastewater) daily.  As previously mentioned in Section 3.17.2.A, there is sufficient capacity at the Los 

Coyotes and Long Beach WRPs.  As a result, no impacts will occur.   

F. Would the project be served by a landfill with insufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the 

project’s solid waste disposal needs? ● Less Than Significant Impact. 

The Sanitation Districts operate a comprehensive solid waste management system serving the needs of a 

large portion of Los Angeles County.  This system includes sanitary landfills, recycling centers, materials 

recovery/transfer facilities, and energy recovery facilities.  The two operational sites are the Calabasas 

Landfill, located near the City of Agoura Hills, and the Scholl Canyon Landfill, located in the City of 

Glendale.  The Puente Hills Landfill was permanently closed in October 2013 and is currently only 

accepting clean dirt.88  The Sanitation Districts continue to maintain environmental control systems at the 

other closed landfills, which include the Spadra, Palos Verdes, and Mission Canyon landfills.  Local 

municipal solid waste collection services are currently provided by Consolidated Disposal Services, CR&R 

Waste and Recycling, and Serv-Wel Disposal Company.  Operational waste that cannot be recycled or 

taken to area landfills will be transported to the Commerce incinerator.  Trash collection is provided by 

the Consolidated Disposal Service, CR and R Waste and Recycling, and Serv-Well Disposal Company.  The 

future daily solid waste generation is projected to be 37 pounds per day.  The proposed project will 

contribute a limited amount to the waste stream.  As a result, less than significant impacts on solid waste 

generation are anticipated.   

G. Would the project comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid 

waste? ● No Impact. 

The proposed use, like all other development in the City, will be required to adhere to all pertinent 

ordinances related to waste reduction and recycling.  As a result, no impacts on the existing regulations 

pertaining to solid waste generation will result from the proposed project’s implementation.   

3.18.3 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

The analysis herein determined that the proposed project would not result in any significant adverse 

impacts on local utilities.  The ability of the existing sewer lines, water lines, and other utilities to 

accommodate the projected demand from future related projects will require evaluation on a case-by-case 

basis.  As a result, no cumulative impacts on utilities will occur.   

3.18.4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

The analysis of utilities impacts indicated that no significant adverse impacts would result from the 

proposed project’s approval and subsequent implementation.  As a result, no mitigation is required.   

                                                 
88 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts.  Solid Waste Facilities.  http://www.lacsd.org/solidwaste/swfacilities/default.asp.  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 3 ● ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS  

 
PAGE 94 

3.19 MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The following findings can be made regarding the Mandatory Findings of Significance set forth in Section 

15065 of the CEQA Guidelines based on the results of this environmental assessment: 

● The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have the potential 

to degrade the quality of the environment. 

● The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have the potential 

to achieve short-term goals to the disadvantage of long-term environmental goals. 

● The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have impacts that 

are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable, when considering planned or proposed 

development in the immediate vicinity. 

● The approval and subsequent implementation of the proposed project will not have 

environmental effects that will adversely affect humans, either directly or indirectly. 

 

 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 4 ● CONCLUSIONS Page 95 

SECTION 4 - CONCLUSIONS 

4.1 FINDINGS 

The Initial Study determined that the proposed project is not expected to have any significant adverse 

environmental impacts.  The following findings can be made regarding the Mandatory Findings of 

Significance set forth in Section 15065 of the CEQA Guidelines based on the results of this Initial Study: 

● The proposed project will not have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment. 

● The proposed project will not have the potential to achieve short-term goals to the disadvantage 

of long-term environmental goals. 

● The proposed project will not have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively 

considerable, when considering planned or proposed development in the immediate vicinity. 

● The proposed project will not have environmental effects that will adversely affect humans, either 

directly or indirectly. 

4.2 MITIGATION MONITORING 

In addition, pursuant to Section 21081(a) of the Public Resources Code, findings must be adopted by the 

decision-maker coincidental to the approval of a Mitigated Negative Declaration, which relates to the 

Mitigation Monitoring Program.  These findings shall be incorporated as part of the decision-maker’s 

findings of fact, in response to AB-3180 and in compliance with the requirements of the Public Resources 

Code.  In accordance with the requirements of Section 21081(a) and 21081.6 of the Public Resources 

Code, the City of Santa Fe Springs can make the following additional findings: 

● A mitigation reporting or monitoring program will be required; and, 

● An accountable enforcement agency or monitoring agency shall be identified for the mitigation 

measures adopted as part of the decision-maker’s final determination. 

A number of mitigation measures have been recommended as a means to reduce or eliminate potential 

adverse environmental impacts to insignificant levels.  AB-3180 requires that a monitoring and reporting 

program be adopted for the recommended mitigation measures.   

 

 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 4 ● CONCLUSIONS PAGE 96 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 5 ● REFERENCES PAGE 97 

SECTION 5 - REFERENCES 

5.1 PREPARERS 

BLODGETT BAYLOSIS ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
2211 S. Hacienda Boulevard, Suite 107 
Hacienda Heights, CA 91745 
(626) 336-0033 
 
Alejandra Rocha, Project Manager 
Marc Blodgett, Project Principal 
Liesl Sullano, Project Planner 
Bryan Hamilton, Project Planner 

5.2 REFERENCES 

Bugliarello, et. al., The Impact of Noise Pollution, Chapter 127, 1975. 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Natural Diversity Database, 2016. 

California Division of Mines and Geology, Seismic Hazards Mapping Program, 2015. 

California Department of Parks and Recreation, California Historical Landmarks, 2014. 

California Office of Planning and Research, California Environmental Quality Act and the CEQA 
Guidelines, as amended 2012. 

California, State of California Public Resources Code Division 13, The California Environmental Quality 
Act.  Chapter 2.5, Section 21067 and Section 21069.1998.  

Federal Emergency Management Agency, Flood Insurance Rate Map, 2010. 

Santa Fe Springs, City of. Santa Fe Springs General Plan. 1991-1994. 

Santa Fe Springs, City of. Zoning Ordinance. 2010. 

Southern California Association of Governments, Regional Housing Needs Assessment, 2014. 

Southern California Association of Governments, Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable 
Communities Strategy, Demographics & Growth Forecast.  2016. 

South Coast Air Quality Management District, CEQA Air Quality Handbook, 2000. 

South Coast Air Quality Management District, Air Quality Management Plan, 2016. 

U.S. Geological Survey, Evaluating Earthquake Hazards in the Los Angeles Region - An Earth Science 
Perspective, USGS Professional Paper 1360, 1985. 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

SECTION 5 ● REFERENCES PAGE 98 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

 
 

 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDICES PAGE 99 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDICES  
APPENDIX A – AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS 

APPENDIX B – TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT 
APPENDIX C – UTILITIES WORKSHEETS 

 

 

  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDICES PAGE 100 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 
 
 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 101 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A - AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 102 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 
 
  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 103 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 104 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 105 

 
 
 
 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 106 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 107 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 108 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 109 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 110 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 111 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 112 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 113 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 114 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 115 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 116 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 117 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 118 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 119 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 120 

 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 121 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX A ● AIR QUALITY WORKSHEETS PAGE 122 

 
 
 
 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 123 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B – TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 124 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 125 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 126 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 127 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 128 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 129 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 130 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 131 

 
 
 
 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX B ● TRAFFIC LETTER REPORT PAGE 132 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX C ● UTILITIES WORKSHEETS PAGE 133 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C – UTILITIES WORKSHEETS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX C ● UTILITIES WORKSHEETS PAGE 134 

 

 
 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX C ● UTILITIES WORKSHEETS PAGE 135 

 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX C ● UTILITIES WORKSHEETS PAGE 136 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX C ● UTILITIES WORKSHEETS PAGE 137 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX C ● UTILITIES WORKSHEETS PAGE 138 

 



INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

 

APPENDIX C ● UTILITIES WORKSHEETS PAGE 139 

 
 
 



MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

 

 
 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND 
REPORTING PROGRAM 

 

 
SOCCER FACILITY 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD 
SANTA FE SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA  

 
 

 
 
 

LEAD AGENCY: 

 
CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS  

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
11710 TELEGRAPH ROAD 

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA 90670 
 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

BLODGETT BAYLOSIS ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
2211 S. HACIENDA BOULEVARD, SUITE 107 
HACIENDA HEIGHTS, CALIFORNIA 91745 

 
 

NOVEMBER 17, 2017 
SFSP 050 



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS ● MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

PAGE 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Section            Page 

1. Overview of the Project ....................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Findings of the Environmental Assessment ....................................................................................... 3 

3. Findings Related to Mitigation Monitoring ....................................................................................... 3 

4. Mitigation Measures ........................................................................................................................... 4 

5. Mitigation Monitoring ........................................................................................................................ 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS ● MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM         PAGE 3

1. OVERVIEW OF THE PROJECT 

The City of Santa Fe Springs, in its capacity as the Lead Agency, is considering an application to operate a 

soccer facility within a 1.09-acre (47,670 square-foot) site at 13045 Los Nietos Road, within the M-2 (Heavy 

Manufacturing) Zone.  The project site is occupied by two existing buildings, referred to herein as “Building 1” 

and “Building 2.”  Building 1 has a total square footage of 5,313 square feet and Building 2 has a total square 

footage of 4,011 square feet.  The two existing buildings will be used by the occupant, Ballmaster Elite Soccer 

Academy (B.E.S.A.), for training and field activities, office uses, and storage uses.  On-site improvements will 

include the installation of a 75-foot wide by 112-foot long outdoor artificial turf field and the re-grading of the 

accessible paths of travel and parking.  Parking will be provided on on-site and off-site surface parking areas.  

The off-site parking will be provided through a shared parking agreement with a neighboring property 850 feet 

to the west.  The on-site and off-site surface parking areas will include a total of 65 stalls.  Access to the 

proposed project will be provided by two existing driveways located on the north side of Los Nietos Road.  

Lastly, the existing and proposed landscaping for the project site will total 3,725 square feet.   

2. FINDINGS OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

The Initial Study prepared for the proposed project indicated that the proposed project will not result in 

significant adverse environmental impacts upon implementation of the required mitigation measures.  The 

following Mandatory Findings of Significance can be made as set forth in Section 15065 of the CEQA 

Guidelines, as amended, based on the results of this environmental assessment: 

● The proposed project will not have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment. 

● The proposed project will not have the potential to achieve short-term goals to the disadvantage of 

long-term environmental goals. 

● The proposed project will not have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively 

considerable, when considering planned or proposed development in the immediate vicinity. 

● The proposed project will not have environmental effects that will adversely affect humans, either 

directly or indirectly. 

3.  FINDINGS RELATED TO MITIGATION MONITORING   

Section 21081(a) of the Public Resources Code states that findings must be adopted by the decision-makers 

coincidental to the approval of a Mitigated Negative Declaration.  These findings shall be incorporated as part 

of the decision-maker’s findings of fact, in response to AB-3180.  In accordance with the requirements of 

Section 21081(a) and 21081.6 of the Public Resources Code, the following additional findings may be made: 

● A mitigation reporting or monitoring program will be required; 

● Site plans and/or building plans, submitted for approval by the responsible monitoring agency, shall 

include the required standard conditions; and, 

● An accountable enforcement agency or monitoring agency shall be identified for the mitigations 

adopted as part of the decision-maker’s final determination. 



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS ● MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

13045 LOS NIETOS ROAD SOCCER FACILITY ● CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 
 

MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM         PAGE 4

4. MITIGATION MEASURES 

The following mitigation is required due to the high occupancy of the proposed soccer facility use: 

Mitigation Measure No. 1 (Hazards and Hazardous Materials).  Wall-mounted methane gas detectors 

must be installed and maintained throughout the proposed project site in order to detect an intrusion of 

methane into the proposed project.  The wall-mounted methane gas detectors must be installed and 

maintained in compliance with all requirements set by the City of Santa Fe Springs Department of Fire 

and Rescue.   

5. MITIGATION MONITORING 

The monitoring and reporting on the implementation of these measures, including the period for 

implementation, monitoring agency, and the monitoring action, are identified below in Table 1. 

TABLE 1 
MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM 

Measure 
Enforcement  

Agency 
Monitoring 

Phase  
Verification 

Mitigation Measure No. 1 (Hazards & Hazardous 
Materials).  Wall-mounted methane gas detectors must be 
installed and maintained throughout the proposed project site in 
order to detect an intrusion of methane into the proposed project. 
 The wall-mounted methane gas detectors must be installed and 
maintained in compliance with all requirements set by the City of 
Santa Fe Springs Department of Fire and Rescue.   

City of Santa Fe 
Springs 

Department of 
Fire and Rescue 

● 
(The Applicant is 
responsible for 

implementation) 

Throughout the 
operational life of 

the project. 
● 

Mitigation 
continues 

throughout the 
operational life of 

the project.   

Date: 
 
 
Name & Title: 
 

 






























